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CliftonLarsonAllm LLP

CLAcon*ect.oom

lndependent auditors' report

To the County Board

Marinette County, Wisconsin

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the

aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of

Marinette County, Wisconsin (the "County") as of and for the year ended December 31 ,2018, and the related notes to

the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements as listed in the table of

contents.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIB¡LITY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial

statements of the Committee on Aging, Association for Business & lndustry and the Stephenson Public Library

Foundation, which are presented as discretely presented component units of Marinette County, Wisconsin. They

represent 100% of the assets, net position, and revenues of theaggregate discretely presented component units. These

statements were audited by other auditors who reports, have been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates

to the amounts for the discretely presented component units, is based solely upon the reports of the other auditors. We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the

Stephenson Public Library foundation and the Marinette County Association of Business and lndustry were not audited

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the

auditors consider internal control relevant to the County's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting

estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinions.

A member of

ù
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ln our opinion based on out audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present

fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the Gounty as of December 31, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, the Health and Human

Services special revenue fund, and the County Roads and Bridges special revenue fund for the year then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

OTHER MATTERS

Required Supplementary I nformation
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and

analysis on pages 4 through 17 and the schedules relating to pensions and other postemployment benefits on pages 66

through 68 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not part of the basic

financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential

part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical

context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the

basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the

limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformation
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the

County's basic financial statements. The financial information listed in the table of contents as supplementary

information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as

required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenfs, Gosf

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, and the Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin

Department of Administration, are also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information and the schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibility of

management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of

the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic

financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the supplementary information, the schedules of expenditures

of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a

whole.
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

ln accordance with Govern ment Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 8, 2019, on our

consideration of the County's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely

to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that

testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over financial reporting or on

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in

considering the County's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

zlP
GliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Green Bay, Wisconsin
August 8, 2019
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
December 31,2018

As management of Marinette County, the Management Discussion and Analysis offers readers our discussion
and analysis of the County's financial activities during the fiscal year that ended December 31,2018. Our
discussion and analysis is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions of the County.

Financial Highlights

from the previous year. Of this amount, a $2,290,573 increase was from Governmental Activities and

$613,128 from the Business-type Activities. The main source of this increase relates to excess revenues
over expenditures. ln the Governmental Activities, revenues increased $2,116,518 from $42,355,476 in

2017 lo fi44,471,994 in 2018. Expenses increased $1,618,800 from $40,562,621 in 2017 to $42,181,421
in 2018. ln the Business{ype Activities, revenues increased $954,483 from $7,455,534in 2017 lo
$8,410,01 7 in 2018. Expenses increased $153,495 from $7,643,394 in 2017 lo $7,796,889 in 2018.

citizens and creditors, increased $1,562,934 from $31 ,617 ,127 in 2O17 to $33,180,061 in 2018.

this decrease was due to the reduction of the 2016 capital improvement project account. The remaining
2016 CIP fund has a balance of $572,344.

year ended December 31, 2018. The decrease in the operating tax rate was driven by a $132,137,700
increase in the County's equalized property valuation. ln 2018, the County increase the debt service
property tax by $.012 to $0.250 for service debt related to the County's Capital lmprovement Plan.

service levy were in compliance with the allowable tax levy limits imposed by the State of Wisconsin.

totaling $35,408,500, an increase of $522,932 from the previous year. Of the December 31,2018
combined governmental fund balance of $35,408,500, approximately 86.3% of this total amount,
$30,550,069 is available for spending at the County's discretion (unrestricted fund balance). The County's
unrestricted fund balance of $30,550,069 is further categorized based on constraints imposed upon the
use of those funds. Of the total unrestricted fund balance, $18,763,603 is committed by County Board
action to specific purposes, $2j00,429 is assigned for specific purpose by the governing body or by the
Finance Director with the Administrator's approval, and $9,686,037 is not committed or assigned
(unassigned).
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approximately 117o/o of total 2018 actual general fund operating expenditures of $22,161,167. The
unassigned general fund amount of $9,686,311 represents 16.7% of the County's 2018 original adopted
gross operational and debt service expenditure budgets which totaled $57,889,971. Under the County's
Fund Balance Policy, $2,339,443 and $l ,836,462 of the $9,686,311 unassigned general fund balance is
classified for contingencies and cash flow requirements respectfully.

the $2,072,890 ending fund balance, $488,400 is committed for specific projects leaving $1,584,490
available for discretionary County Road spending. An increase in County maintenance expenditures was
a major reason for the funds decrease.

for 2018. A transfer from the general fund of $455,074 to cover the 201 7 fund deficit was the main source
of the increase. The general fund also transferred $220,000 for the purchase of the Marinette County
Group Home and $67,844 to support mental health case management and telehealth psychiatrist services
in 2018. High placement costs for juvenile boarding, either State mandated or implemented to provide
better service to Marinette County residents, continue to affect financial results. For 2018, the ending HHS
fund balance was $72,286.

the end of 2017. After current year debt service costs, the debt service fund ended the year with a net
increase of $206,768. The fund ended 2018 with a fund balance of $834,881 , compared to $687,066 in
2017 . The debt service fund realized a savings of $200,000 in principal and $6,000 in interest due to early
retirement of an inter-fund advance from the general fund in 2017.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Marinette County's basic financial
statements. The County's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also
contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements, The government-wide financiatsfafemenfs are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of Marinette County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business.

The sfafement of net position presents information on all of the County's assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference reported as nef position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial condition of Marinette County is
improving or deteriorating.

The sfafement of activities presents information showing how the County's net position changed during the most
recent year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. (e.9., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave.)

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Marinette County that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (óusrness-fype
activities). The governmental activities of the County include general government; public protection; public ways
and facilities; health; culture and recreation; education; forestry; and conservation and development. The
business-type activities of the County include highway operations and the joint operation with Oconto County of a
landfill (Solid Waste Fund).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 18 - 21 of this report.
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Fund financial statemenús, R fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Marinette County, like other state and

local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the County can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary

funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds, Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendabte resources, as well as on balances of spen dable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such
information may be useful in evaluating the County's near-term financing requirements.

It is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the County's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmentalfunds and governmental activities.

Marinette County maintains 1B individual governmental funds. lnformation for the County's major funds is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances. The County's major funds are the general fund; county
roads and bridges, and health and human services special revenue funds; and the debt service fund. Data from
the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. lndividual fund data for each
of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining sfafements elsewhere in this report.

The County adopts an annual appropriated budget for all its governmental funds. As part of the basic
governmental fund financial statements, budgetary comparison statements have been provided for the general
fund and for the major special revenue funds to demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 22 - 29 of this report.

Proprietary funds, Marinette County maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are
used to report the same functions presented as busrness-type activities in the government-wide financial
statements. The County uses enterprise funds to account for its Highway Department operations and 50% of the
activities of a landfill operated jointly with Oconto County (Solid Waste Fund). lnternal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the County's various functions.
Marinette County uses internal service funds to account for the County's various insurance activities, information
services department, and motor pool. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than
business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. lndividual fund data for the internal service funds is provided in the combining statemenfs elsewhere
in this report.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information on the Highway Department and
the jointly operated landfill (Solid Waste Fund). Both funds are considered to be major funds.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 33 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are nof reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of these funds are nof available to support the County's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on page 34 of this report.
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/Vofes to the basic financial statemenús. tne notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 35 - 65 of this report.

Other information. Required supplementary information relating to pensions and other
post-employment benefits and the combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major
governmental funds and internal service funds are presented following the notes to the basic financial statements.

Required supplementary information and the Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be
found on pages 66 - 86.

Government-wide Fi nancial Analysis
Net position. As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. ln the case of the County, the net position at the end of 2018 was $98,344,399 compared to
$95,440,698 for the year ended 2017.

The largest portion of the County's net position (63.5%) reflects its investment in capital assets of $62,414,242
(e.9. land, buildings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, etc.); less any related debt used to acquire those
assets that are still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available forfuture spending. Although, the County's investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.
Currently, Marinette County uses a combination of County sales tax and a debt levy to provide for its debt service.

An additional portion of the County's net position ($2,750,096) represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position ($39,t 80,061) may be
used to meet the County's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

Marinette Countfs Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Bus iness-type
Activities

Governmental
Activities

Bus iness-type
Activities Total Total

Total
Percentage

Change
2017 2017 2018 2018 2017 2018 2Q17-2018

ì I a, Ã,Current & other assets
Capital assets

Total assets
Deferred outflow of

resources
Long-term liabilities

outstanding
Other liabilities
Total liabilities
Deferred inflow of

resources
Net position:
Net investment in

capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Net pos ition:

1,076,928 6,172,584 908,016 8,245,358 7,080,600 -14.13Yo

376,040 23,763,564 786,381 20,029,779 24,549,945 22.570/0

-0.15o/o

62 ,757

7 '168,430

3.048 88,894,786 9,449,613 95,440,698 98,344,399

87,091,090
7

50,048,482

75
86,963,887

46,8

145,306,033

46,216,511

19 739

11,967,568

3,831,971

149,353,109

42,867,343

13,338,648
7,233,081
6,105

4,010,670

-3.19o/o

-20.95%

2.73Yo

-10.31o/o

4.94Yo

7,143,068
373,857

1,319,560

55,181 ,160
2,350,764

31,362,862

7,233,082
399,332

1,817,199

60,757,324
3,066,247

31,617,127

62,414,242
2,750,096

33,180,061

53,614,256
2,692,390

30,297,567
$ 86,604,213 $

157,273,601 1

41,187,154
8,861,328

39,873,563
7,004,450

65,358,011
79,948,022

39,369,084
6,847,427

4,824,500
7,143,068

1 ,818,070
2,013,901

69,622,303
79,730,806

36,314,065
6,553,278

3,559,498
451,172
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Change in net position. After the year-end results, the County's net position totaled $98,344,399. Of the

$2,903,701 increase in net position from 2017, Governmental Activities increased $2,290,573 and Business-type
Activities increased $613,128. The key elements affecting the change in net position were as follows:

Governmental Activities:

revenues over expenditures. Revenues in the Governmental Activities increased $2,116,518 from
$42,355,476in2017 to$44,471,994 in 2018. Expenses increased $1,618,800 from $40,562,621 in2017
to $42,181 ,421in2018.

appropriations to the general fund.

fonivard to the 2019 budget. These funds were originally transferred from the 2016 Capital lmprovement
Project (ClP) funds. Additional Capital maintenance funds of $572,344 assigned for specific building repair
and update projects were also unspent in 2018 and carried over to 2019.

carried forward to the 2019 budget. This project was expected to be completed in early 2019.

carried forward to 2019 for the broadband project. $100,000 was transferred to the self-insurance fund for
start-up costs associated with the decision to move to a self-insured plan for 2019. The remaining amount
of $379,939 was transferred to cover unexpected 2018 expenses and year-end budget overages

$37,638 from $2,854,533 in 2017 lo $2,892,171 in 2018. Low stumpage rates continue to be the major
reason for the decreased revenues.

imposed local unit levy limits. This increase was easily absorbed by employee benefit cost increases.

Business-type Activities:

revenues over expenditures. Revenues in the Business-type increased $954,483 from $7,455,534 in 2017
to $8,410,017 in 2018. Expenses increased $153,495 from $7,643,394 in 2017 to $7,796,889 in 2018.

$68,162. The major source of the loss was due to excess expenditures of $574,856 over revenues of
$535,887 in 2018. lnterest earnings of $21 ,793 mitigated some of the loss. Cash and cash equivalents
increased $195,995 to $761 ,779 in 2018. Operating results of the landfill reflect the County's policy to
provide competitive solid waste disposal alternatives within Marinette and Oconto County's. lt is expected
that all landfill closure and post closure cost will be fully funded at the end of landfill operations with no
additional contributions needed from the Counties.
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Marinette Gounty's Change in Net Position
m nes e

Activities Activities Totals

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Fees, fines, & charges
for services
Operating grants and contributions.
Capital grants and contributions
General revenues:
Property& sales taxes
Other taxes
Grants & contributions not restricted

$ 9,434,335
9,342,367

43,746

$ 9,922,318 $ 7,407,63s
9,978,061

$ 8,364,553 $ 16,841,970
- 9,342,367
- 43,746

$ 18,286,871
9,978,061

19,891,853
1 ,0't8,852

20,343,946
1,079,827

19,891,853
1,018,852

20,343,946
1,079,827

specific programs 1,665,806 1,842,009 1,665,806 1,842,009
1,351,297Other 958 517 1 47 45 1 006 16

revenues
Expens es:
General government
Public protection
Publicwap &facilities
Health
Culture & recreation
Education
Forestry
Conservation & development
lnterest & fiscal charges
Highway operations
Solid waste

7,220,567
9,103,871
3,817,716

14,205,778
2,336,218

636,105
1,439,298
1,075,065

728,003

6,717,518
9,466,058
4,622,268

14,526,489
2,433,084

734,784
1,391,598
1,629,429

660,193

7,220,567
9,'103,871
3,817,716

14,205,778
2,336,218

636,105
1,439,298
1,075,065

728,003
7,101,270

6,717,518
9,466,058
4,622,268

14,526,489
2,433,O84

734,784
1,391,598
1,629,429

660,193
7,222,0337.101,270

542,124
7,222,033

574 124 57
otal elpenses 1,421 7,643,394 7,796,889 48,206,0't5 49,978,310

lncrease (decrease)in net position
Cumulatiw Effect of Change in

Accounting Principle
Prior Period Adjustment
Net Position - January 1

Net Position - December 31

(5,323,e83) (1,338,935)
41j06

(6,662,918)
41,',t06

90 1 1 86 3 1 174 5 100 5

88,894,786 8,836,485 9,449,613 9s,440,698 98,344,399

Expenses & Program Revenues - Governmental Activities
$16,00 0,000

$11,000,000

$12,00 0,000

,10,000,000

,e,00 0,000

$6,000,000

,1,000,000

$2,ooo,ooo

s-
Publ¡c\ åys& CulturE &

Recrsation

lnt€rEd &

F¡sal
Charges

I

o
¡ Apenæs

Gsn€ral

Gov6rnmenl Facilit¡es

Foro*ry



Revenues by Source - Governmentglp$¡;fiyities

Fees, Fines, &
Charges for
Services
22.31o

22.44o/"

Property Taxes
37.860/"

Education
l.75Vo

General Government
15.590h

Capital Grants
0.000/0

Investment
Revenue
2.llo/o

Grants &
Contributions
4.14o/"

Other Taxes
2.430Â

Culture & Recreation
5.790

Other
0.83%

Forestry
3.29Yo

Conserrr¿tion &
Development

3.860

Debt S ervice (Interest)
1.58o/o

Sales Tax
7.ggo

Expenses by Activity - Governmental Activities

Public Ways &
Facilities

ll.O4o/"

Health
34.6loh

Public Protection
22.49Vo
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Expenses and Program Revenues - Business Type Activities

$10,000,000

$7,5oo,ooo

$5,0000000

$2,500,000

$-

Operation &

87.370

Highway Solid Waste

I Expenses I hogramRevenue

Expenses by Activity - Business Type Activities

Depreciation
ll.24o/o

Pension

Adjustments

0.020

LandÌll Care
1.37o/o
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Financial Analysis of Marinette Gounty's Funds

As noted earlier, the County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Marinette County's governmental funds is to provide information on

near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendab/e resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
County's financing requirements. ln particular, the unresfricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
the County's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of December 31,2018, the County's combined governmental funds totaled $35,408,500, an increase of
$522,932 from the prior year. Approximately B6% of this amount, $30,550,069, constitutes unrestricted fund

balance, which is available for spending at the County's discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either
classified as non-spendable or restricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has

already been committed 1)for current year purchases of inventory and prepayments that benefit periods beyond
the end of the current year ($352,318), 2) for non-liquid delinquent taxes ($2,602,019) 3) for loans receivable that
are not expected to be liquidated in the next year ($201 ,926) 4) by grant, donor or other restrictions ($1,702,168).

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of the current year, the unrestricted fund
balance of the general fund was $25,915,553, while the total fund balance was $29,221,399. As a measure of the
general fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare both the unrestricted fund balance and the total fund balance to
total fund expenditures. Unrestricted fund balance represents 116.9% of total 2018 general fund expenditures,
while total fund balance represents 137.9% of that same amount. This compares to prior year percentages of
87.3o/o and 100.6% resPectivelY.

Marinette County's General fund balance increased by $353,693 for the year ended December 31,2018. The
slight increase in fund balance was mainly due to County Departments staying within their original appropriations
and returning unspent appropriations to the general fund. Other factors contributing this increase include
uncompleted capital maintenance project funding.

The County's Health and Human Services (HHS) Special Revenue Fund ended with a fund balance of $72,286 in
2018. This compares to the deficit fund balance of $455,074 in the previous year. A transfer from the general

fund of $455,074 to cover the 2017 fund deficit was the main source of the increase. High placement costs for
juvenile boarding continue to strain annual expenditures. Unfilled staff vacancies and conservative budgeting
have assisted in mitigating these expenditures. The current fund balance represents .53% of the total 2018
Health and Human Services special revenue fund expenditures of $13,743,186.

Results for the County's other major funds are listed under the financial highlight section.
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Proprietary funds. Marinette County's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
County's government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the highway department enterprise fund at the end of the year was $2,135,409, an
increase $377,482 from 2017. The main source of the increase to relates to excess revenues over expenditures.
Revenues increased $394,993 from $6,933,673 in 2017 lo $7,828,666 in 2018. Comparatively, expenses
increased slightly $124,344 from $7,094,561 in 20171o $7,218,905 in 2018.

The Maroco Landfill unrestricted net position increased $123,285from ($490,243)in2017lo ($366,958) in 2018.
An operating loss of $38,969 was offset by $21,793 in investment earnings. Overall, a decrease in net position
for the solid waste fund in 2017 was $17,176 from $876,389 in 2017 to $B59,213 in 2018.

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the
County's business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
Additional expenditure appropriations during the year decreased the original general fund expenditure budget by
$316,836. The change to the 20lB expenditure appropriations can be summarized as follows:

capital projects, and onetime expenses that were funded with additional revenues received by
departments during the year.

Actual expenditures were less than final budgeted expenditures by $1,483,217 primarily due to the following:

current year and carried over to 2019.

$173,621 in general government, $93,399 in education, $112,560 in forestry, and $352,107 in

conservation and development contributed

Actual revenues were $811,419|ess than projected budget amount in 2018. Both unrealized intergovernmental
revenues and charges for services were the main areas of revenue shortfalls. However, they were not a factor in

overall results, as the related expenditures also were not realized as mentioned above.
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Gapital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital asseús, The County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and businesstype activities as

of December 31,2018 amounts to $86,963,887 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, land improvements, buildings, machinery/equipment, vehicles, public domain infrastructure
(highways and bridges), and construction in progress. The total decrease in the County's net investment in

capital assets for the current year was 9127,203 mainly as a result of investment in depreciation being greater

than new assets.

Additional information on Marinette County's capital assets can be found in Note C.4 on pages 48 - 50 of this
report.

Marinette County's Capital Assets
(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Gow rn m ental Activities Business-type Totals

7 018 2017 2018 2018

Land
Construction in progress

Land improvements
Buildings &

improvements
Machinery&

equipment
lnfrastructure
Total

4,865,401 238,989
178,612
991,643

238,989
237,727
888,619

5,104,390
331,823
991,643

5

153,2',t1 499,536 737,263
888,619

28,902,695 28,374,868 1 ,637,389 1,462,049 30,540,084 29,836,917

3,386,752
42,639,963

3,523,305
42.407,696

4,096,435 4,405,697 7,483,187
- 42,639,963

7,929,002
42.407,696

730,806 7,143,068 7,233,08 ,963,887

Long-term debt, At the end of the year, the County's total general obligation debt outstanding was

$25,340,000. All of this debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the County.

County's Outstanding Debt

General Obligation Debt

Govern m ental Activiti es Business-type Totals

7 2018 2016 2017 7 2018

General Obligation Debt

Bonds and notes $27,740,OO0 $ 25,340,000 $ $ $27,740,000 $ 25,340,000

The County's total general-obligation debt balance decreased by $2,400,000 (8.65%) in 2018. A shift by the
Marinette County Board to fund capital improvements through the operational budget and discontinue borrowing
will continue to decrease outstanding debt in future years.

The County's general obligation debt is serviced by the lz o/o County sales tax and supplemented by a debt
service levy. ln 2014 an internal advance from the General Fund of $1,000,000 was utilized to help with the early
retirement of the 2004 Library renovation debt. The balance on the advance of $400,000 was paid off in 2018
due to positive results in sales tax.

Sales tax revenues are also used tofund Countytourism and some capital outlay in the generalfund. The 2018
transfer out of the debt service fund for the foregoing items $1,056,821. ln 2019, sales tax revenues net of
principal and interest payments on debt will be left in the debt services fund in anticipation of notes maturing for
the2014,2015 and 2016 borrowing subject to early callfor redemption.
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As of December 31 ,2018 the Standard and Poor's affirmed rating remains AA/Stable for Marinette County. The
good and bad factors in the rating include:

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt the County may issue to 5% of its total equalized
valuation. The current debt limitation for the County is $195,696,555 which is $170,356,555 in excess of the
County's $25,340,000 in outstanding general obligation debt. The County further constricts its debt through a
County Debt Policy.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

data at the time of this report. This rate is down from the 4.5% recorded in March, 2019 and the 4.6%
recorded in March, 2018. Comparatively, the State of Wisconsin's average rate for April, 2019 is 2.8o/o.

debt rating agency attributes the weak local economy to a concentrated employment base, with reliance of
the Marinette Marine Corporation, one of the County's larger employers on government contracts.
Marinette Marine, having a substantial effect for the local economy, currently employs approximately 1,500
employees as compared to 1,400 a year ago. Their parent company, Fincantieri, has recently completed a
$73.5 million capital expansion program, with 550,000 square feet of manufacturing, warehouse and
receiving space, allowing the ability to build six Littoral Combat Ships simultaneously.

new facility provides an extensive women's health center, heart and vascular center, and cancer center.
Recently, Advocate Aurora Health recently signed as agreement to assume full ownership of Bay Area
Medical Center. The deal is expected to close mid-year, 2019 and the community would benefit from
coordinated services existing in the Advocate Aurora Health footprint.

in their specialty industries and continue to recover. Evidence of community involvement and support for
growth, the fall of 2018 brought an effort to have the Twin Cites selected for the latest season of Small
Business Revolution. Ultimately, though not chosen, Marinette and Menominee was among the final ten
with more than 12,000 towns nominated.

and means to promote economic development and tourism. The major retail center is in the City of
Marinette and continues to develop as several new major retailers have taken occupancy in the efforts to
rejuvenate the Mall area.

supports large events such as concerts and trade shows, as well as sports activities including soccer,
baseball, softball, ice hockey, basketball, tennis, curling and indoor track events. lt is expected to help
draw workforce talent to the area, providing recreation opportunities for families.

changes to allow ATV/UTV access to some County roads. Municipalities throughout the county have
requested these road routes to aid in accessing the trail systems. Volunteers from six Marinette County
ATV Clubs maintain the nearly 300 miles of trails.

grants will be used to provide internet service to unserved and underserved homes in Marinette County.
The $210,000 grant will deploy a TV White Space system to ten locations in Marinette County and involves
placing a tower in the Town of Dunbar. The Marinette County Board of Supervisors approved partnering
and entering into an agreement with Packerland Broadband to establish services in portions of the county
along the US Highway 141 corridor at a cost not to exceed $60,000 in support of this project.
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The following factors were considered in preparing the County's 2019 budget:

State levy limit statues provide that Counties may only increase their annual operating tax levy by the percentage
change in new construction less improvements removed from the assessment roll in the last year. The limit can't
go below zero. These levy limits are permanent per the 201 1-13 state budgets. The statutes established specific
penalties for failure to meet the levy requirements. Among the penalties for exceeding the limits is the reduction
of state shared revenues and transportation aids. Under the limit, the County's operating tax levy increase for the
2019 budget increased to $243,983 or 1.549o/o.

As part of the 2019 general fund budget, the County applied $11,517 of restricted, $13,844 of committed,
$762,268 of assigned, and $641 ,129 of unassigned fund balances. Total general fund amounts applied totaled
$1,428,758. Total restricted and committed special revenue and debt service fund balances applied to the 2019
budget were $664,982. Of the total funds applied ($2,772,618) to the 2019 budget, $2,522,618 represented funds
specifically accumulated for special purposes. The County elected to leave expected surplus sales tax collections
netof principal and interest paymentson debtfund in anticipation of notes maturingforthe 2014,2015and 2016
borrowing subject to early call for redemption.

The County's 2019 budget contains capital project expenditures of $4,482,113. ln previous years, capital project
expenditures were funded through general obligation borrowing. Capital project expenditures are currently
funded through the operational budget, fund balances and the application of County savings. This was a cultural
shift beginning in 2017, moving away from using general obligation bonding. Of the 2019 budgeted capital project
expenditures of $2,126,045, $1,674,875 is for county road annual maintenance, $375,000 for Ella Court building
renovations, and $76,170 is for Sheriff Department vehicle replacements.

The debt levy for 2019 of $957,406 was required to help fund principal and interest payments related to the
County's Capital lmprovement Plan (ClP). The five year CIP was initiated in 2014. The County uses a
combination of sales tax revenues and debt service levy to fund debt service requirements.

The application of surplus funds back in the 2005 budget still significantly magnifies the effect of the State tax levy
limits which started with the County's 2006 budget. Without implanting the debt levy, the County would have
been forced to reduce capital outlay and services. Beginning in 2019, the sales tax is being used solely for debt
service, moving away from its use to fund capital outlay, tourism, and economic development.

The County committed $19,058,908 to a property tax reduction fund that was received from the 2008 sale of the
Bay Area Medical Center facilities and from funds previously committed for county health care. lnvestment
income from this fund is considered in the budget process and used to fund County operations and keep property
tax rates reduced if and when levy limits are removed. This fund was reduced in 2017 with a $7.5 million dollar
loan to the City of Marinette. As payments are received over the course of the 20 year loan, principal payments
will be deposited back into the fund. The year-end fund balance increased $150,000 from $11,558,908 in 2017 to
$11,708,908 in 2018. Lower interest rates continue to hurt the County's investment returns in recent years, but
are improving.

During 2011 the County developed and approved a fund balance policy that is in compliance with Government
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 54 and defines the County's goals to maintaining a strong adequate fund
balance while addressing future needs both planned as well as unplanned. The County is in compliance with the
fund balance policy and considered the policy in the development of the County's 2019 Budget.

ln 2O14, the County also approved a Debt Policy which defines County debt limits by considering the tax burden
on the County's taxpayers.
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Contacting the County's Financial Management

Marinette County's financial report is designed to provide a general overview for those interested in County's
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Finance Director, Marinette County, 1926 Hall Avenue, Marinette,
Wisconsin 54143.
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MARTNETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

December 31,2018

Primary Government

Business-type
Activities Total

$ 32,381,993 $ 2,967,979 $ 35,349,972
ASSETS

Pooled cash and investments
Other cash and investments
Accounts receivable
lnterest receivable
Taxes receivable
Loans receivable
lnternal balances
Due from other governments
lnventories and prepaid items
Restricted cash and investments
Net pension asset
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)

Nondepreciable
Depreciable

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Reti rement system unfunded I iabi I ity amortization
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred pension contributions & changes
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned fringe benefit
Due to other governments
Deposits from others
Unearned revenue
Accrued interest
Long-term obligations

Unamortized premiums
Portion due or payable within one year:

Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences

Portion due or payable after one year:
Bonds and notes payable
Compensated absences
Post employment insurance

Landfill care costs
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes
Deferred pension contributions and changes
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

Governmental
Activities

1,953,443
831,344

20,182,972
8,464,578

(48,748)
1,454,194

878,241
266,687

3,257,599

5.424,937
74,305,869

47,601
1,389

48,748
367,101

1,492,296
781,121
399,332

476,716
6,756,365

2,001,044
832,733

20,182,972
8,464,578

1,821,295
2,370,537
1,047,808
3,656,931

5,901,653
81,062,234

149,353,109 13 162,691,757

229,848
5,942,736
6,172,584

180,530

727,486
908,016

180,530
229,848

6,670,222
7,080,600

1 ,1 13,013
1,273,925

73,137
199,183
416,385
211,165

759,391

2,350,000
157,079

22,990,000
1.413,715

1 1 ,910,350

352,376
4,356

80,129

14,311

1,465,389
1,278,281

80,1 29
73,137

199,183
416,385
211,165

759,391

2,3s0,000
171,390

22,990,000
1.542.511

13,412,583
1,928,469

128,796
1,502,233
1,928,469

42,867,343 4,010,670 46,878,013

17,348,566
6,4 14.998 786,381

17,348,566
7,201,379

23,763,564 786.38 1 24,549.945

55,181 ,160
2,350,764

7,233,082 62,414,242
399,332 2,750,096

1,817,199 33,180,061

_$ eÉ499!-3_ _$__s83!4ë9_
31 362

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Com Units

Committee
on Aging

Business &
lndustry

Stephenson
Public Library

ation

$$$
77,223
96,351

45,000
500.398

5l ,915
8,546

1,287

1,899,033

540,366
4,901 ,151

718,972 5,503,265 1,899,033

19,619
11,196

6,989
3,145

,rnn
790

951

51

14,465 182,903

338,123 36,058

383,403 282,235

5.222,556
5,000

330,569 (1,5261 1,899,033
$ 33s.569 $ 5.221.030 $ 1.899.033
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MARIN ETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Activities

Program Revenues
Fees, Fines, Operating Capital
and Charges Grants and Grants and
for Services Contributions Contributions

Governmental
General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health
Culture and recreation
Education
Forestry
Conservation and development
lnterest and fiscal charges
Total Governmental Activities

Business-type
Highway
Solid waste
Total Business-type Activities

Total Marinette County

Component Unit
Committee on Aging
Association of Business & lndustry
Stephenson Library Trust

Total Component Units

$ 6,717,518
9,466,058
4,622,268

14,526,489
2,433,084

734,784
1,391,598
1,629,429

660,193
42,181,421

$ 1,390,928 $
740,825

3,810,935
415,234

9,641
3,125,587

429,168

221,608 $
232,175

1,580,451
6,755,383

348,324

126,714
713,406

9,922,318 9,978,061

7,222,033
574,856

7,796,889

7,828,666
535,887

8,364,553

$ 49.978.310 $ 18.286.871 $ 9,978,061 s

$ zoo,t zo $$ 953,696
587,780

22,473

717,073 $
156,283

$ I.563,949 $ 266.176 $ 873,356 $

General revenues:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for public ways and facilities
Property taxes, levied for health
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Sales taxes
Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Earnings (loss) on investments
Lease revenue
Gain (loss) on other property sales
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position

Net position - January 1

Net position - December 31

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Units

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Committee
on Aging

Association for
Business &

lndustry

Stephenson
Public Library

Total

$ (5,104,982)
(8,493,058)
(3,041 ,8r 7)
(3,e60,171)
(1,66e,526)

(72s,143)
1,860,703
(486,855)
(660,1e3)

(22,281,042\

$ (5,104,e82) $
(8,4e3,058)
(3,041 ,817)
(3,e60,17r )
(1,669,526)

(725,143)
1,860,703
(486,855)
(660,1e3)

$$$

(22,281,042)

606,633
(38,969)

606,633
(38,969)

567,664 567,664

(22,281,042\ 567,664 (21,713,378\

29,553
(431,497',)

(22,473)

29,553 (43'l,497\ (22,473)

9,762,247
2,405,177
3,741,457

928,296
3,506,769
1,079,827
1,842,009

936,974
77,453
89,404

202,002

21,793

23,671

9,762,247
2,405,177
3,741,457

928,296
3,506,769
1.079,827
1,842,009

958,767
77,453
89,404

225,673

(2e,e62)
249,991

24,571,615 45,464 24,617,079
3,024
3,024

32,577

302,992

$ 335.569

249 991 (29,962)

2,290,573

86,604,213

613,128

8,836,485

2,903,701

95,440,698

(181,506)

5,402,536

(52,435)

1,951,468

$ 88.894.786 $ 13 s 98.344.399
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31,2018

GENERAL
FUND

COUNTY
ROADS AND

BRIDGES

HEALTH AND
HUMAN

SERVICES
DEBT

SERVICE
ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Delinquent property taxes
Accounts receivable

Property taxes levied for subsequent year
lnterest receivable
Loans receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
Restricted assets - pooled cash and
investments

Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to generalfund
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Deposits from others
Unearned revenue

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes
Loans receivable
Long-term loans receivable
lnterest of delinquent taxes
Fines and forfeitures

Total deferred inflow of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFlClrS)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

$ 25,819,385 $ 2,072,890 $
2,834,406

924,507

9,957,324
659,261

7,551,925
605,990
530,178
351,548

2,052,332

552,751

4,277,684

924,016
770

650 $ 221,703

61 3,1 78

957,406

Å 1,192Æ_ÅJ92U,524_ s 4.125,222 $ 5,7s5,871

$ 758,022
852,910

73,137
194,053
230,474

$ $ $235,811
387,885
605,804

278
176,123

2,108,596 1,405,901

9,957,324 2,052,332 4,277,684 957,406

7,350,000
511,182
86,023

17,904,529 2,052,332 4,277,684 957,406

20,013,125 2,052,332 5,683,585 957,406

770

2,072,890 71,516

2,072,890 72,286

Total liabilities and fund balances (deficits) $ 49.234.524 $ 4j25222 $ 5,755,871

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,155,493
150,353

14,128,813
2,100,429
9,686,311

29,221,399

834,881

834,881
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TotalNonmajor
Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

g 2,937,842 $

13,737

1,845
912,653

2,705

31,052,470
2,834,406
2,104,173

'17,244,746
661 ,1 06

8,464,578
608,695

1,454,194
352,318

266,687
$ 65,043,373

$ 1,006,678
1,240,831

605,990
2,705

73,137
194,331
406,597

266,687

_$___lr_35Æ9_

$ 12,845
36

186
2,705

15,772 3,530,269

912,653
17,244,746

912,653
7,350,000

511,182
86.023

912,653 26,104,604

928,425 29.634.873

't,551,815

1,655,503

3,156,263
1,702j68

18,763,603
2,100,429
9,686,037(274

3,207,044 35.408,500

$ 135 469 $ 6s.043,373
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Balance Sheet (Continued)

Governmental Funds
December 31,2018

Reconciliation to the Statement of Net Position

Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are

different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds.
Capital assets
Less: amount included below with internal service funds

Some liabilities, including bonds and notes payable, are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Bonds and notes payable
Loss on advance refunding
Reflnancing premium

Compensated absences
Post-employment health insurance
Accrued interest on long-term obligations

Other long{erm assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Loans receivable
lnterest on loans
lnterest on delinquent taxes
Clerk of Courts receivable

The County's proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension

is not an available financial resource; therefore it is not reported in the
in the financial statements:
Net pension asset
Deferred outflow of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of reproduction,
motor pool, information services and the County's insurance to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities as Reported on the Statement of Net Position
(see page 18 - 19)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 79,730,806
(1,086,039)

$ (25,340,000)
229,848

(75e,3e1)
(1,570,794)

(1 1 ,910,350)
(211,165\

$ 3s,408,499

78,644,767

(39,561,852)

$ 8,262,653
18,620

511,182
86.023

$ 3,2s7,599
5,942,736

(6,414,ee8)

8,878,478

2,785,337

2,739,557

$ 88.894.786
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

GENERAL
FUND

COUNTY
ROADS AND

BRIDGES

HEALTH AND
HUMAN

SERVICES DEBT SERVICE

REVENUES
Taxes
Sales tax
lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Charges for services
Commercial
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health
Culture and recreation
Education
Forestry
Conservation and development

Debt service:
Principal payments
lnterest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
(usEs)

Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

$ 10,749,325 $ g 3,741,457 $

6,103,085

3,683,086

2,405,177

1,588,167

20,032

928,296
3,506,769

4,543,361
367,064

4,603,339
1,091,209

946,659
22,300,957 4,013,376 13,527.628 4,435,065

6,458,311
9,504,400

1,011,332
2,222,440

269,190
1,494,916
1,200,578

4,386,850
13,743,186

2,400,000
771 475

22 161 167 4,386,850 13,743,186 3,171,475

139,790 (373,474\ (215,s58) 1,263,590

1,056,821
(842,9r8)

191,471 742,918
(1,056,821)

213.903 191 471 742,918 (1,056,821)

Net change in fund balances 353,693

28,867,705Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(182,003)

2,254,893

527,360

(455,074)

206,769

628,112
s 29.221.398 $ 2,072,890 $ 72,286 $ Ae+,aar
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TotalNonmajor
Funds

$

Total
Governmental

Funds

7,712
283,163

69,168
450,748

16,217

s 17,824,255
3,506,769

12,242,325
650,227

8,355,593
1,541,957

982,908
827,008 45j04,034

293,130
119,179

3,1s1
5,938

209,898

387,128

6,751,441
9,623,579
4,390,001

14,760,456
2,432,338

269,190
1,494,916
1,587,706

2,400,000
771,475

1,018,424 44,481j02

191 622,932

(191,471)
1,991,210

(2,0s1,210)
191 71

(382,887)

3,589,931

(100,0001

522,932

34,885,5ô7
$ 3.207.044 $ 35,408,499
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances (Continued)

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Reconciliation to the Statement of Activities

Net Change in Fund Balances from previous page

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities

are different because:

Governmentalfunds report capital outlays as expenditure. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital assets reported as expenses in governmentalfund statements
Depreciation expense reported in the statement of activities
Net book value of disposals
I nfrastructure adjustments

Governmentalfunds do not present revenues that are not available to pay

current obligations. ln contrast such revenues are reported in the statement
of activities when earned:

lnterest receivable on taxes
Clerk of court receivables
Loans
Revolving loan receivables

Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmentalfunds, but
the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Principal repaid

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds:

Accrued interest on long-term debt
Amortization of debt premium net of refunding expense
Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Net pension liability
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

lnternal service funds are used by the County to charge the costs of reproduction,
motor pool, information services and the County's insurance to individualfunds. The
net revenue of the internal service funds and is reported with the governmental activities.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities as reported in the
Statement of Activities (see pages 20 and 21)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 522,932

$ 1,620,042
(1,517,912)

(112,61e)
(232,267\

$ (24,890)
(24,506)

(197,880)
119,942

2,400,000

7,333
103,949

774
(1e1,270)

4,153,193
(937,046)

(3,598,436)

199,234
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Budqeted Amounts
o ActualFinal

Variance with
Final Budqet

REVENUES
Taxes
lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Charges for services
Commercial
Miscellaneous
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General government
Public protection
Health
Culture and recreation
Education
Forestry
Conservation and development
Total expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

21,983,552 23,112,376 22,300,957

$ 10,699,620 $
4,237,556

318,990
5,272,368

937,284

10,715,087
4,679,199

341,250
5,665,779
1,122,346

588,715

$ 10,749,325
4,543,361

367,064
4,603,339
1,091,209

946,659

34,238
(135,838)

25,814
(1,062,440)

(31,137)
357,944

$

517 734
(811,419)

8,370,111
9,286,841
1,016,378
2,233,745

338,846
1,526,576

188 773

7,264,'t77
9,564,221
1,028,281
2,264,955

362,589
1,607,476
1,552,685

6,458,311
9,504,400
1,011,332
2,222,440

269,190
1,494,916
1.200,578

805,866
59,821
16,949
42,515
93,399

112,560
352,107

23.961.270 23,644.384 22,161,167

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (1,977,718\ (532,008) 139,790

1 7

671,798

1,056,821 1,056,821
ß42,917\

1,056,821
(842,918)

1,056,821 213,904 213.903

(e20,897)

33,670,727

_$ 32J49.8æ_

(318,104)

26,995,255

353,693

28.867,705

671,797

1.872,450
$ 26.677.151 _$ 29,221-398_ s 2.s44.247

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MARINETTE COUNTY, W|SCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Ghanges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Health and Human Services
For the Year Ended December 31 , 201 I

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ 3,741,457
5,655,929
4.755.248

$ $

Variance with
Final Budqet

REVENUES
Taxes
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Health

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

3,741,457
5,941,863
4,754,430

3,741,457
6,103,085
3,683,086

161,222
(1,071,344\

$

14,152,634 14,437,750 13,527,628

14,152,634 14.725,533 't3,743,186

(910,122\

982,347

(287,783) (215,558) 72,225

742 918 742,918

455,135 527,360

(455,074) (455,074) (455,074)

_$____1155,04I _$_____91_ _S______!2,286

72,225

$zz 225
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

County Roads and Bridges
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

$ 2,405,177
1,580,4s1

Variance with
Final Budoet

REVENUES
Taxes
lntergovernmental
Miscellaneous revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Public ways and facilities

Excess (defìciency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$ 2,405,177
1,580,451

2,405,177
1,588,167

20,032
7,716

20,032

$ $

3,985,628 3,985,628 4,013,376 27 748

4.165,818 4,545,818 4.386.850 158 968

(180,190) (560,190) (373,474\ 186,716

222,066 222,066 191.471 (30,595)

4't,876 (338,124)
1 ,653,677 818,058

--$--- 
.!*6e5-554 

--$------r1Z9e- s 2.072.890 $ 1.592.956

(182,003)
2,254,893

156,121
1,436,835

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

Propr¡etary Funds
December 31,2018

Bus¡ness-tvpe Activities
Governmental

Act¡vities

Hiohwav Mar-Oco Landfill
Total Enterprise

Funds
lnternal Service

Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments
Petty cash
Accounts receivable
Property taxes lev¡ed for subsequent year
lnterest receivable
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
lnventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets

Pooled cash and investments
Net pension asset

Capital assets
Land
Land improvements
Work in progress
Buildings
Machinery and eguipment
Accumulated deprec¡at¡on

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Unearned fringe benefit
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits from others
Unearned revenue
Compensated absences payable
Total current liabil¡ties

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences payable
Post employment health insurance
Accrued landfill closure/post closure care cost
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Property taxes
Deferred inflows related to pens¡on
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 2,205,900
100
50

367,'r01

1,492,296

761,779
200

47,551

1,389

$ $ 2,967,675
300

47,601

I,389
367,101

$ 1,329,523

888
103,820

508,751
1,492,296 17 172

4.065.447 810,919 4,876,366 1,960.154

387,147

51,475
142,695
237,727

4,968,773
10,491 ,313
(9,872,887)

781,121
't2,185

187,5't4
3,289,438

17,468
448,303

Q.728.738\

781,121
399,332

238,989
3,432,',t33

237,727
4,986,241

10,939,616
(12.601,625)

2,435,O31
(1.348,992)

6,406,243 2,007,291 8,413,534 1,086,039

10,471 ,690

885,980

2,818,210 13,289,900 3,04ô,1 93

22,036 908,016

80,129
333,281

't4.3',t1

I 9,095
4,356

80,129
352,376

4,356
106,334
33,094
4,852
9,788

't4,3'11
427.721 23,45'.1 451.172 154,068

128,796
1,497 ,115 5,118

1,928,469

128,796
't,502,233
1,928,469

1.625.911 1.933.587 3.5s9.498

2,053,632 1.957.038 4,010,670 154,068

103,820
762,38ø 23,995 786,381
762,386 23.995 786,381 103.820

I,086,039

2,135,409 (366,958) 1,768,451 1,702,266

__q______qÉ4,6!a __$________qgg39_ __q______9¡99É9!_ __$______499,399_

6,019,096
387,147

1,213,986
't2,185

7,233,082
399,332
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December, 31,2018

Total Fund Balances as shown on previous page

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of net position
are different because certain internal service assets and liabilities are included
with business-type activities.

Net Position of Business-Type Activities as Reported on the
Statement of Net Position (see page 18 - 19)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 9,400,865

48,748

s 9.449.613
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Business-type Act¡vities
Governmental

Activit¡es

Hiqhwav Mar-Oco Landf¡ll
Total Enterprise

Funds
lnternal Service

Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Admin¡stration
Operation and maintenance
Claims and premiums
Landfill closure/post-closure care costs
Pension adjustments
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

NONOPERATTNG REVENUES (EXPENSES)
General property taxes
Sale of county property
lnsurance recoveries and dividends
lnvestment earnings
Miscellaneous revenues
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before contributions and transfers

Transfers in

Change in net pos¡tion

Total net position - January 1, as originally reported

Total net pos¡tion - ending

7.828,666 $ 535,887 $ 8.364,553 $ 2,391,519

6,49s,652

723,253

32,',t68
281,312

107,070
1,660

't52,646

32,168
6,776,964

107,070
1,660

875,899

1,62s,393
623,186

192,610
7,2r 8,S05 574,856 7.793.761 2.441.189

609,761 (38,969) 570,792 (49,670)

21.793 2't,793
23.671

92,749
19,041
32,200

1.786

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

23.671
23.671 2',t,793 45,464 145,776

633,432 (17,176) 6r6,256 96,106

r 00,000

633,432 (17.176\ 616,256 196,106

7.908.220 876,389 8,784,609 2.592.199

$ 8,541,652 $ 859,213 $ 9,400,865 $ 2,788,305
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December, 31,2018

Change in Net Position, per above

Some amounts reported for business-type activities in the statement of activities
are different because the net revenue (expense) of certain internal service
funds is reported with business{ype activities.

Change in Net Position of Business-Type Activities as Reported on the
Statement of Activities (see pages 20 - 21)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 616,256

(3,128)

$ 613.128
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Forthe Year Ended December31,2018

Business-type Act¡vities - Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Act¡vities

HIGHWAY
MAR-OCO
LANDFILL

ïotal Enterprise
Funds

lnternalService
Funds

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash from interfund
Cash receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activit¡es

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL F]NANCING
ACTIVITIES

Property taxes
lnsurance recoveries
Transfer in
Miscellaneous revenue

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

GASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used by capital and related fìnancing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest received on ¡nvestments

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beg¡nning of year
Balances - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operat¡ng activities:
Operating lncome (Loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operat¡ng income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts Payable - lnterfund
Accounts Payable - Other
Accounts Payable - Supplier
Customer Receivables
lnventory
Other operating receivables
Salaries & Benefits Payable
lncrease in postclosure care cost estimates
Prepaid items
Post employment benefits
Change in pens¡on liability(asset), defened inflows and outflows

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH RECONCILIATION
Actual Balance - end of year

The notes to fìnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.

(2,826.æ7) (219,607)
1,578,935 197,069

$ 4,578,231 $
3,411,068

(3,583,527)
517,004

(100,328)

$ 4,578,231
3,928,072

(3,683,855)
(3.046.444)

2,106,551
286,003

(674,191 )
(1,939,644)

(221,281\

$

1,776,004

23,671 23,671

92,749
32,200

100,000
1,786

23.671 23.671 226.735

(965,913) (965,913) (218,148')
19,041

(965.9r3) 1965.913) (199.107)

21,438 21,438

636,693 219,507 855,200 (1 93,653)
1,569,307 1,324,593 2,893,900 1,523j76

__$______2¿99!q9- __$_______1Ét9J_q9- __$______q1q-q9_ __$_L9?qq4_

$ 609,761 $ (38,e6e) $

723,253 152,646

570,792 $ (49,670)

875,899 r92,610

'11,071
(1 0,698)
187,252
170,773

(1 71 ,057)

314,553

8,'131
(30,054)

(1,958)
(1 8,883)

585
107,070

(5,083)

(10,698)
185,294
151 ,890

(1 71,057)

31 5,1 38
't07,070

8,131
(35,r 37)

105,210
12,106

'1,552
(r 1,071)

3,938

(487,027)

$ (221,281)

$ 2,206,000 $ 1,543,1 00 $ 3,749,100 $ 1,329,523

35



MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

December 31,2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Delinquent property taxes

Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Tax collections
Forest income
Special assessments
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Agency funds

$ 6,639,317
150,274re

4,179,669
290,851
154,639

2,561
2,161,265

606
$ 6.789,591

$
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Marinette County, Wisconsin

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of Marinette County, Wisconsin ("the County") have been prepared in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant accounting principles and policies utilized by

the County are described below:

1. Reoortinq Entitv

Marinette County is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 3O-member board. ln accordance with GAAP,

the basic financial statements are required to include the County (the primary government) and any separate

component units that have a significant operational or financial relationship with the County. The component units

discussed below are included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational and

financial relationship with the County.

2. Comoonent Units
DTScRETELy PReserureo Coupo¡¡erur UNrrs

The component unit columns in the basic financial statements represent the financial data of the Marinette County

Committee on Aging, lnc. (MCCA), the Marinette County Association for Business and lndustry, lnc. (MCABI), and

the Stephenson Public Library Foundation, lnc. They are reported in separate columns to emphasize that the

entities are legally separate from the County. The MCCA is a not-for-profit corporation that provides services
primarily in connection with the "Older Americans Program" for the elderly of Marinette County. The County

annually provides significant operating subsidies to the MCCA. Audited financial statements for the MCCA can be

obtained from their administrative office in Crivitz, Wisconsin. The MCCA expended less than $750,000 in federal

funds during 2018 and therefore was not required to have an audit performed in accordance with the Uniform

Guidance. Because the MCCA received funding of more than $25,000 from the State of Wisconsin Department of
Health Services (DHS) during 2018, the MCCA's audited financial statements include an audit performed in

accordance with the DHS's Provider Agency Audit Guide. The MCABI is a not-for-profit corporation that pursues

economic development activities throughout Marinette County. The County's officials are responsible for appointing

two members to the board of directors of the MCABI. The County provides the majority of funding for the MCABI

and therefore this organization is included in the County's reporting entity as a discretely presented component unit.

Audited financial statement for MCABI can be obtained from their administrative office at 1320 Main Street,

Marinette, Wisconsin, 54143. The Stephenson Public Library Foundation, lnc. is a not-for-profit corporation that
enhances the Stephenson Public Library by supplementing certain costs of the Library. Audited financial statements

for the Stephenson Public Library Foundation, lnc. can be obtained from their administrative office in Marinette,

Wisconsin.
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Marinette County, Wisconsin

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

3. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report

information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the County and its component units. For the most part, the effect

of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are primarily

supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from þusrness-type acfivlfies, which

rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for services. Likewise, the primary government is reported

separately from certain legally sepàrate component unifs for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.

Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,

services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to

meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included

among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even

though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Governmental funds include general,

special revenue, debt service and capital projects funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal service

funds. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns

in the fund financial statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds.

Ge¡¡enel Fut¡o

This is the County's main operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except
those accounted for in another fund.

Cou¡¡ry Roeos mro Bnroces Specnl REve¡¡ue Furo
This fund accounts for the County's expenditures related to construction and maintenance of County roads and

bridges. A tax levy along with State aid provides the significant revenues for the fund.

HEaurn aNo Huuar Senvrces Specnu REve¡¡uE Fut¡o

This fund accounts for the County's many comprehensive and integrated programs which deal with the physical,

social, mental, emotional, vocational and nutritional needs of individuals and families. Significant revenues include

tax levy, Federal and State aid, and fees.

Deer Srnucs Fur.¡o

This fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-term
general obligation debt of governmental funds. A county sales tax and a debt tax levy provide the revenues for the

fund.
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Marinette County, Wisconsin

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

The County reports the following major enterprise funds:

Hlcxwev
This fund accounts for the costs associated with the operation and maintenance of the County's highway

department facilities including all machinery and the County trunk highway system. Costs are billed to other County

departments, the Wisconsin Department of Transportation or local municipalities on an actual cost basis plus a

percent of direct labor to cover indirect costs. Machinery and equipment are charged out at an hourly rate basis that

includes costs of operations, depreciation and overhead.

Man-Oco Ln¡ronll
This fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of a sanitary landfill serving as a solid waste disposal site

for the entire County as well as for a materials recycling facility. The MAR-OCO Joint Landfill is operated in equal

ownership shares by Oconto and Marinette counties. MAR-OCO is managed by a separate committee of six

members consisting of three members of each County's Board of Supervisors. Marinette County records 50% of

MAR-OCO's financial transactions in an enterprise fund on its financial statements.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

tnternal seruice funds account for: self-insurance, information services, and central motor pool services provided to

other departments or agencies of the County on a cost reimbursement basis.

The County accounts for assets held for individuals by various departments, funds held for other governmental

agencies and property taxes collected on behalf of county municipalities in agency funds.

4. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accountinq

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the

accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are

recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related

cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar

items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and

The modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and

available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon

enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the County considers revenues to be

available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are

recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as

expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is

due.

Revenues susceptible to accrual include intergovernmental grants, intergovernmental charges for services, public

charges for services and interest. Other revenues such as licenses and permits, fines and forfeits and

miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in cash or when measurable and available.

As a general rule the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial

statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the County's highway department and the County

roads and bridges special revenue fund. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program

revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
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Marinette County, Wisconsin

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,2018

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, and fees and fines, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and

contributions. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.

Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and

expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the County's enterprise funds
are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of services,

administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the County's policy to use restricted

resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

5. Assets. Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund Balance

a. Cash and lnvestments
Cash and investments are combined in the financial statements. Cash deposits consist of demand and time

deposits with financial institutions and are carried at cost. lnvestments are stated at fair value. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash deposits and highly liquid

investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less from date of acquisition are
considered to be cash equivalents.

b. Prooertv Tax Apoortionments
Property taxes are apportioned annually in November to local taxing units within the County for financing state

charges and the subsequent year's operations of the County. Since the November apportionment is not due

from local taxing districts until February of the subsequent year, the County's apportionment is recorded as

deferred inflows of resources at year-end. Property tax payments from individual property owners are due in

two installments by January 31 and July 31. During the month of February, each local taxing district settles with

the County for both collected and unpaid property taxes. At the February settlement, the County becomes
responsible for the collection of unpaid property taxes, including unpaid property taxes returned by local taxing

districts for financing their individual operations. Property taxes subsequently not paid by property owners by

September 1 of the same year are considered delinquent. The delinquent taxes are then acquired by the

County's general fund in accordance with state statutes in order to provide the County with a statutory lien.

Property taxes recorded on December 31 , 2018 for collection in 2019 are $17,348,566. The County

apportionment is for financing 2019 operations and will be transferred in 2019 from deferred inflows of

resources to current revenues of the County's governmental and proprietary funds.

c. Accounts and Loans Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at gross amount with uncollectible amounts recognized under the direct
write-off method. No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been provided since it is believed that the

amount of such allowance would not be material to the basic financial statements.
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d. lnterfund Receivables and Pavables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods provided or
services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other funds" and "due to other
funds" in the fund financial statements.

The amount reported on the statement of net position for internal balances represents the residual balance
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities.

e lnventories
lnventories are recorded at cost, which approximates market, using the first-in, first-out method. lnventories
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time
individual inventory items are consumed rather than when purchased.

lnventories of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by non-spendable fund balance to
indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

f. Prepaid ltems
Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current fiscal year are recorded as
prepaid items.

Prepaid items of governmental funds in the fund financial statements are offset by non-spendable fund balance
to indicate that they do not represent spendable available financial resources.

g. CaoitalAssets
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in the
applicable governmental or businesstype activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the County as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or higher. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Gowrnmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Assets
Land improrcments
Buildings
lmprorements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnftastructure

10-20
50

25-40
2-15

20-50

10-20
25-50
10-50
3-10

41



Marinette County, Wisconsin

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

h. CompensatedAbsences
It is the County's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits

in accordance with bargaining unit agreements or adopted policies and procedures. All vacation and sick leave

is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these

amounts is reported in the governmental funds in the fund financial statements only if they have matured, for

example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

i. Deferred Outflows/lnflows of Resources
ln addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflow of resources, represents a

consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of

resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County has three items that qualify for reporting in this

category. 1). The Highway fund retirement system unfunded liability reported in the government-wide and

proprietary funds statements of net position. The unfunded liability charge results from the previous pay off of

the retirement liability. This amount is deferred and being amortized over a thirty year period. 2). A deferred

charge on debt refunding reported in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on

refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This

amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. 3). The

County's proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan and is deferred and amortized

over the expected remaining service lives of the pension plan participants.

ln addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represent as an

inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The County has two items that qualify for reporting in this category

in the government-wide statement of net position. The first is property taxes, which will be recognized as an

inflow of resources in the subsequent year for which it was levied. The second is related to the County

proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan and is deferred and amortized over the

expected remaining service lives of the pension plan participants.

The County also has an additional type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting

that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the

governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from three sources,

loans receivable, interest on delinquent taxes and fìnes and forfeitures. These amounts are deferred and

recognized as an inflow of resources in the period the amounts become available.

Lonq-term Obliqations
ln the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-

term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities,

business-type activities, or proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are

deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond

premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the current period.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond

issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing

sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on

debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs. whether or not withheld from the actual

debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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k. Pensions
For the purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from WRS fiduciary net position have

been determined on the same basis as they are reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments

(lncluding refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the

benefit items. lnvestments are reported at fair value.

l. Other Postemplovment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

Qualifying employees are provided with other postemployment benefits. The OPEB is a single employer
defined benefit plan administered by the County. For purposes of measuring the OPEB liability, related

deferred outflows and inflows and OPEB expense, the District has used values provided by their actuary
Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

m. Fund Equitv

GoveRruurrurru Fur.¡o FlruRruclRt- SrRreve¡¡rs

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitation

requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications describe the relative strength

of the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

Non-spendable fund balance - Amounts that are not in spendable form (such as inventory, prepaid items,

or long-term receivables) or are legally or contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by external parties (such as
grantor or bondholders), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of the County

Board. These constraints can only be removed by the County Board using the same action that was used

to create them.

Assigned fund balance - Amounts that are constrained for specific purposes by action of County

Management. The County Board has authorized the County's Finance Committee to approve assignment
of fund balance per recommendation of the Finance Director and County Administrator.

Unassigned fund balance - Amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive unassigned amounts are

only reported in the General Fund.

The County has not adopted a fund balance spend-down policy regarding the order in which fund balance will

be utilized. When a policy does not specify the spend-down policy, GASB Statement No. 54 indicates that
restricted funds would be spent first, followed by committed funds, and then assigned funds. Unassigned funds

would be spent last.

a

a

a

a
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GovEnruuenr-wtDE nruo PRopnterRnY Furuo StRrevrruts

Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components

Net investment in capital assets - Amount of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and capital

related deferred outflows of resources less outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other

borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets and any

capital related deferred inflows of resources.

Restricted net position - Amount of net position that is subject to restrictions that are imposed by

1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or

2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position - Net position that is neither classified as restricted nor as net investment in

capital assets.

6. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in

the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE B. STEWARDSHIP AND COMPLIANCE

1. Budoets and Budoetarv Accountino
The County follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the basic financial statements

a. October, County management submits to the County Board a proposed operating budget for the calendar year

commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. After submission to the governing body, public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments.

Following the public hearings, the proposed budget, including authorized additions and deletions, is legally

enacted by County Board action.

b. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America for the governmental funds. Budget is defined as the originally approved budget plus or minus

approved amendments. lndividual amendments throughout the year were not material in relation to the original

budget. Budget appropriations not expended during the year are closed to fund balance unless authorized by

the governing body to be forwarded into the succeeding year's budget.

c. During the year, formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for the

governmental funds.

d. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations provided in detailed budget accounts maintained for each activity

or department of the County. The County Administrator can make budget revisions within the line budget

accounts for each activity or department. Budget revisions between activity or department accounts can only be

made by the Finance Committee. The use of contingency funds more than ten percent of the amount budgeted

for each activity or department along with all other budget amendments and transfers require approval by the

County Board.
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e. Encumbrance accounting is not used by the County to record commitments related to unperformed contracts

for goods or services.

The County did not have any material violation of legal or contractual provisions for the fiscal year ended

December 31,2018.

2. Deficit Fund Balance

As of December 31 , 2018, the teen court fund had a deficit fund balance of $274 respectively. This deficit will be

funded with a transfer from the unassigned General Fund balance.

3. Propertv Tax Lew Limit

Wisconsin state statutes provide for a limit on the property tax levies for allWisconsin cities, villages, towns and

counties. For the 2018 and 2019 budget years, the increase in the maximum allowable tax levy was limited to the
greater of the percentage change in the County's January 1 equalized value as a result of net new construction.

The actual limit for the County for the 2018 budget was 1.774o/o. For the 2019 budget year, the actual limit for the

County was 1 .549%. Debt service for debt authorized after July 1,2005 is exempt from the levy limit. ln additions,

Wisconsin statutes allow the limit to be adjusted for the increase in debt service authorized prior to July 1, 2006 and

in certain other situations.

NOTE C. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

1. Cash and lnvestments

PRtvRRv Goven¡¡verur
The County maintains various cash and investment accounts, including pooled funds that are available for use by

all funds. Each fund's portion of these accounts is displayed in the financial statements as "Pooled cash and

investments."

lnvested cash consists of deposits and investments that are restricted by Wisconsin Statutes to the following:

Time deposits; repurchase agreements; securities issued by federal, state and local governmental entities;

statutorily authorized commercial paper and corporate securities; and the Wisconsin local government

investment pool.

The carrying amount of the County's cash and investments totaled $43,037,097 on December 31, 2018 as

summarized below:

Petty cash and cash on hand
Deposits with fi nancial institutions
lnwstments

$ 4,735
7,431,738

35,600,624
$ 43,037,097
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6,639,317
$ 43,037,097

Fair Value Measurements

The County categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally

accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the

asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant

observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The County has the following fair value

measurements as of December 31 ,2018:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Lercl1 Lercl 2 Lewl3

Reconciliation to the basic financial statements

Gorernment-wide Statement of Net Position
Cash and inrestments
Restricted cash and inrestments

Fiduciary fund statement of net position
Agency funds

$ 35,349,972
1,047,808

4,450,061
2,441,354
4,218,629

583,340
8,402,U5

415,401
5,925,649
1,728,656

$ 28,165,433 $

Deposits and investments of the County are subject to various risks. Presented below is a discussion of the specific

risks and the County's policy related to the risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposifs is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a

government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the

possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investmenfs is the risk that, in the event of the failure of

the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its

investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Wisconsin statutes require

repurchase agreements to be fully collateralized by bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal

government or its instrumentalities. All trades of marketable securities are executed by delivery versus payment

through an independent third party custodian and evidenced by safekeeping receipts in Marinette County's name.

Deposits with financial institutions within the State of Wisconsin are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance

Corporation (FDIC) in the amount of $250,000 for the combined amount of all time and savings deposits and

$250,000 for interest-bearing and noninterest-bearing demand deposits per official custodian per depository

institution. Deposits with Financial lnstitutions located outside the State of Wisconsin are insured by the FDIC in the

amount of $250,000 for all deposit accounts per official custodian per depository institution. ln addition, the State of

Wisconsin has a State Guarantee Fund which provides a maximum of $400,000 per public depository above the

amount provided by an agency of the U.S. Government. However, due to the relatively small size of the State

Guarantee Fund in relation to the Fund's total coverage, total recovery of insured losses may not be available.
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As of December 31, 2018, $5,150,873 of the County's deposits with financial institutions was in excess of federal

and state depository insurance limits and uncollateralized.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the

investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization

Wisconsin statutes limit investments in securities to the top two ratings assigned by nationally recognized statistical

rating organizations. The County further reduces credit risk through its investment policy which limits types of

investments, prequalifies institutions, and diversifies the investments. The negotiable CD's listed below are not

rated, however these investments per institution are less than $250,000 each, and are therefore insured by FDIC.

Presented below is the actual rating at time of purchase for each investment type.

Amount

Exempt
From

Disclosure
Not

lnvestment Type
Federal National Mortgage

Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Goremmental National

Mortgage Association
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Small Business

Association
Corporate Paper
Municipal Bonds
Wisconsin Local Gorernment

lnrcstment Pool
Wisconsin Local Golemment

lnvestment Pool - DNR
Totals

$ 4,450,061 $

2,441,354
4,218,629

583,340
8,402,344

415,401
5,925,648
1,728,656

6,708,591

$ 4,450,061 $

2,44',1,354
4,218,629

583,340

415,401
5,925,648
1,728,656

AAA Aa Rated

$

8,402,344

6,708,591

726,600726,600
$35,600,624 $ $ 19,763,08e $ $ 15,837,535

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the County contains limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer. The

County considers non-negotiable certificates of deposits as investments for limitation purposes. lnvestments in any

one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, certificates of deposit, and external investment pools)

are as follows:

lnrcstmentType
Reported
Amount

Percent of
Totallssuer

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)
Federal Farm Credit Bank

U.S
U.S
U.S

$4,450,061
2,441,354
4,218,629

12.1%
6.7o/o

1"tA%

As of December 31, 2018, the County is not in violation of diversification limits as imposed by its investment policy.
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lnterest Rate Risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market

interest rates. The County's investment policy limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to

fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

lnformation about the sensitivity of the fair values of the County's investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the CounÇ's investments by maturity:

Rem aining Maturity (in Months )

Amount
12 Months

or Less
13lo 24
Months

25 to 60
Months

More Than
60 Monthslnwstment T¡,Pe

@
Association

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation

Federal Farm Credit Bank
Goremmental National

Mortgage Association
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit
Small Business Association
Corporate Paper
Municipal Bonds
Wisconsin Local Gowmment

lnrestment Pool
Wisconsin Local Goremment

lnlestment Pool - DNR
Totals

Highly Sensitirc lnwstments

$ 4,450,061 $ 1,149,053

2,441,354
4,218,629

$ 2,628,244 $ 672,764 $

274,356 2,166,998

1,230,101
583,340

5,193,934

742,185
4,441,884

615,864

4,218,629

1,978,309

1,483,764
370,607

6,708,591

726,6q0-S16s1ffi T-48'z"s-8-6-

-- Fair Value
atYear End

583,340
8,402,344

415,401
5,925,648
1,728,656

6,708,591

415,401

726,600
-S3slõõ'oF24- $13,674,784 $ 415,401

lnvestments with Fair Values Hiohlv Sensitive to lnterest Rate Fluctuations

The County's investments include the following investments that are highly sensitive to interest rate fluctuations (to

a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided above):

Federal National Mortgage Association
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation
Federal Farm Credit Bank
Gorcmmental National Mortgage Association
Small Business Association
Corporate Paper

$ 4,450,061
2,441,354
4,218,629

583,340
415,401

5,925,648

lnvestment in Wisconsin Local Government lnvestment Pool

The County has investments in the Wisconsin local government investment pool of $7,435,191 at year-end directly

and through the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources. The Wisconsin local government investment pool

(LGIP) is part of the State lnvestment Fund (SlF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin lnvestment Board.

The SIF is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority

of Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the LGIP

have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2018, the fair value of the

County's share of the LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the carrying value.
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Covpor.¡erur U¡rns
At year end, the bank balance of Marinette County Committee on Aging, lnc., component unit, were less than

$250,000 and, accordingly, covered by FDIC insurance.

The Marinette County Association for Business & lndustry, component unit has a bank balance and investments.

The bank balance consists of cash in money market funds and general demand accounts. The investments are

stated at fair market value and consist of various securities with local financial institution trust departments. At

December 31,2018 the investment in money markets was $51 ,915with a fair market value of $51,915.

The Stephenson Public Library Foundation, lnc., component unit has a bank balance and investments. The bank

balance consists of various certificates of deposits and cash in money market funds. The investments are stated at

fair market value and consist of various securities with local financial institution trust departments. At December 31,

2017 lhe investment cost was $485,461 with a fair market value of $497,575.

2. Delinquent Propertv Taxes - General Fund

Delinquent property taxes of the general fund represent unpaid property taxes on real estate, including state and

local government equities therein. Under state statutes, the County annually reimburses the state and local

governments for their equities in property taxes not collected from the property owner. Unless redeemed by the

property owner, the County will eventually obtain tax deed ownership of the properties comprising delinquent taxes.

ln the past, the County has generally been able to recover its investment in delinquent taxes by sale of the tax deed

properties.

On December 31, 2018, the County's general fund showed an investment of $2,834,406 in delinquent taxes as

follows:

Tax certificates
Tax deeds
Total

$ 2,692,888
141,518

$2, 834,406

An aging of the total delinquent taxes of $2,834,406 on December 31, 2018 follows:

Year
Acquired Total

Tax
Certif cates

Tax
Deeds

Pnor to 2012
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

70,868
1,748
2,677
6,605
9,294

484,979
864,312

1,393,924

2,530
1,356
1,293
4,819
9,294

480,498
848,058

1,345,041

68,338
392

1,384
1,786

$ $ $

4,481
16,254
48,883

$ 2,834,406 $ 2,692,888 $ 141,518

Of the total of $2,834,406 for delinquent taxes, $232,386 was collected by the County within 60 days after

December 31,2018. The remaining unpaid balance of $2,602,020 recorded as non-spendable fund balance for the

general fund.
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3. Restricted Assets
Restricted assets on December31,2018 totaled $1,047,808 and consisted of cash and investments held forthe
following purposes:

Special Rewnue Fund
Solid waste long-term care

Enterprise Funds
Solid waste long-term care/closure

Total Restricted Assets

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, nondepreciable

Land
Construction work in progress

Subtotals

Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnftastructure

Subtotals

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improwments
Machinery and equipment
lnftastructure
Subtotals

Total capital assets, depreciable, net

Goremmental activities capital assets, net

Less related long-term debt outstanding

Net inwstment in capital assets

lncreases Decreases

$ 266,687

781,121
$ 1,047,808

4. CapitalAssets
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2018 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance

Ending
Balance

$ 4,865,401
153,211

60,000
s38,980

$
192,655
'192.6-55-

$ 4,s25,401
499,536

5,424,937

$

5,018,612 598,980

45,205,938
12,304,109
66,095,120

422,791
1,009,074 513,083

595,297

45,628,729
12,800,100
66,897,3561, 397,533

123,605,167 2,829,398 1,108,380 125,326,185

16,303,243
8,917,357

23,455,157

950,618
759,904

1,629,800
400,46ô
595,297

17,253,861
9,276,795

24,489,660
48,675,757

74,929,410

3,340,322

(510,924

995,763

112,617

51,020,316

74,305,869

$ zg, 948.022 $ 88,056 $ 305,272 79,730,806

24,549,646

$ 55,181,160
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Beginning
Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Businestype activities:
Capital assets, nondepreciable

Land
Work in progress

Subtotals

Capital assets, depreciable
Land improrcments
Buildings
Machinery and equipment

Subtotals

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land improwments
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Subtotals

Business-type activities capital

Less related long-term debt outstanding

Net inwstment in capital assets

417,601 195,763 136,648 476,716

3,432,133
4,986,241

10,939,616

$ zse,gag $
178,612 195,763 136,648

$ 238,989
237,727

$

3,413,919
4,986,241

10,364,106

18,214

792,512 217,OO2
18,764,266 810,726 217,002 19,357,990

2,422,276
3,U8,852
6,267,671

@

121,238
175,340
579,321 313,073

2,543,514
3,524,192
6,533,919

Total capital assets, depreciable, net 6,725,467

875,899

(65,173)

313,073

(e6,071)

12,601,625

6,756,365

assets, net $ 7,143,068 $ 130,590 $ 40,577 7,233,081

$ 7,233,081
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the County as follows

$ 127,670
676,516

1,629,800
84,768
58,658

448,224
119,870

2,206
192,610

$ 3,340,322

$ 723,253
152,646

$ 875,899

5. lnter-fund Receivable. Pavables. and Transfers
lnter-fund receivables and payables between individual funds of the County, as reported in the fund financial

statements, as of December 31, 2018 are detailed below:

Gowmmental activities
General gorcmment
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health
Culture and recreation
Education
Forestry
Consenation and dewlopment
Allocated fom intemal service funds
Total depreciation expense - go\emmental activities

Business-type activities
Highway
Solid waste
Total depreciation expense - business-type actilities

Cash adwnce for cash frow/ fund balance deficit
General Fund
Health and Human Services Fund
Teen Court
Library Donations
Falkenberg Trust
Totals

lnterfund
Receivables

lnterfund
Payables

$ 606,176 $
605,990

186

2,705
2,705

$ 608,881 $ 608,B81

lnter-fund transfers for the year ended December 31,2018 were as follows

Transfer to:

General
Fund

County
Roads and

Bridges
Self-

lnsurance

Health and
Human
Services Totals

Transfers fom:
General fund
Debt service
2016 capital projects
Totals

$
1,056,821

-S-m-s6-"8-2i-

$

191,471w
$ loo,ooo $ 742,e18__ t ,ftl,rj

Transfers were used to move surplus sale tax revenues to other funds where expenditures have been authorized,

close capital project funds and move appropriated funds where budgeted to the fund that incurred the expenditure
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6. Lonq-term Obliqations

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations of the County for the year ended December 31,

2018:

Outstanding
111118 lssued Retired

Outstanding
12t31t18

Due Within
One Year

Governmental activities:
General Obligation Debt

Bonds
Notes
Total General Obligation Debt

Debt premium
Compensated absences
Gowmmental activities

Long-term obligations

Busines+type activities:
Compensated absences

$ 30,233,708 $

$ 9,540,000
18,200,000

$1,900,000
500,000

$ 7,640,000
17,700,000

$ 1,900,000
450,000

$

27,740,000
922,140

1,571,568

2,400,000
162,749

774

25,340,000
759,391

1,570,794

2,350,000
162,749
157,079

$2,563,s23 $27,670,18s $2,669,828

$ 179,031 $ - $ 35,924 $ 143,107 $ t+,gt t

$ 7,640,000

7,600,000

5,400,000

4,700,000

Total interest paid during the year on long-term debt totaled $759,475.

General Obliqation Debt

General obligation debt currently outstanding is detailed as follows

Bonds
$16,615,000 issued 3115112; $125,000 to $1,875,000 due annually to 2022;

interest 1.50% to 4.00 o/o

Notes
$9,435,000 issued 211214; $635,000 to $4,000,000 due annually to 2023;

interest 1.00% to 3.00%
$5,945,000 issued 3110115; $145,000 to $4,000,000 due annually lo 2024;

interest 2.00% to2.50%
$5,000,000 issued 411U16; $100.000 to $2,000,000 due annually to 2026;

interest 2.00% 1o2.25%

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt $ 25,340,000

Annual principal and interest maturities of the outstanding general obligation debt of $25,340,000 on December 31,

2018 are detailed below:

Year Ended
December 31,

Gorern m ental Activities

Principal lnterest Total

$ 2,350,000
2,400,000
2,365,000
5,325,000
4,700,000
8,200,000

$ 711,975
653,475
585,787
454,250
266,000
278,250

$ 3,061,975
3,053,475
2,950,787
5,779,250
4,966,000
8,478,250

000 $ 2,949,737 $28,289,737

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2024-2026
$2s
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For governmental activities, the other long-term liabilities are generally funded by the general fund

Leqal Marqin for New Debt

The County's legal margin for creation of additional general obligation debt on December 31, 2018 was

$1 71,191,436 as follows:

Equalized wluation of the County
Statutory limitation percentage
General obligation debt limitation, per Section 67.03 of the

Wisconsin Statutes
Total outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation
Less: Amounts arailable for financing general obligation debt

Debt service fund
Net outstanding general obligation debt applicable to debt limitation
Legal Margin for New Debt

$ 25,340,000

834,881

$ 3,913,931,100
(x) s%

195,696,555

24,505,119
$ 171,191,436

7. Pension Plan

a. Plan Description

The WRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefits and other plan

provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms may only be modified by the

legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin Department of Employee Trust Funds

(ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of Wisconsin, local government and other public

employees. All employees, initially employed by a participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and

expected to work at least 1200 hours a year (880 hours for teachers and school district educational support
employees) and expected to be employed for at least one year from employee's date of hire are eligible to

participate in the WRS.

ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Financial Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
http ://etf .wi. gov/publ ications/cafr. htm.

For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively employed on or after
April24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a retirement annuity.

Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April24, 1998, and prior to July 1 , 2011, are immediately

vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011, must have five years of
creditable service to be vested.

Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62 for elected officials and

executive service retirement plan participants, if hired on or before December 31,2016 are entitled to a

retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their final average earnings, and creditable service.

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest earnings periods. Creditable service

includes current service and prior service for which a participant received earnings and made contributions as

required. Creditable service also includes creditable military service. The retirement benefit will be calculated

as a money purchase benefit based on the employee's contributions plus matching employer's contributions,

with interest, if that benefit is higher than the formula benefit.
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Vested participants may retire at or after age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarially-

reduced benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an annuity may either

receive employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation benefit or leave contributions on deposit

and defer application until eligible to receive a retirement benefit.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

b. Post-RetirementAdjustments

The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity payments from the retirement system based

on annual investment performance in accordance with s. 40.27, Wis. Stat. An increase (or decrease) in annuity

payments may result when investment gains (losses), together with other actuarial experience factors, create a

surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined by the system's consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not

based on cost of living or other similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously

granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed

amount (the "floor") set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years

are as follows:

Year Core Fund Adjustment Variable Fund Adjustment

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017

3o/o

6.6
(2.1)
(1.3)
(1.2)
(7.0)
(e.6)
4.7
2.9
0.5
2.0

1Oo/o

0
(42)
22

(7)

I
25
2
(5)
4

11

c. Contributions

Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with Chapter 40 of the

Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially determined contribution

rate for general category employees, including teachers, and Executives and Elected Officials. Required

contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to

contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the

employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement.

During the year ending December 31 , 2018, the WRS recognized $l,289,995 in contributions from the County

Contribution rates for the reporting period are:

Employee EmployerEmployee Category

Protectire with Social Security
Protectire without Social Security

6.8%
6.Bo/o

6.8%

6.8%
10.60/o

14.9o/o
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d. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows of Resources

Related to Pensions i

At December 31,2018, the County reported an asset of $3,669,1 15 for its proportionate share of the net

pension asset. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31,2017 , and the total pension liability

used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31 , 2016

rolled forward to December 31,2017. No material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between

the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The County's proportion of the net pension asset was

based on the County's share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating

employers. At December 31,2017, the County's proportion was 0.12357592%, which was a decrease of

0.00002383 from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2016.

For the year ended December 31,2018, the County recognized pension expense of $1,596,831

At December 31,2018, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred lnflows
of Resources

Difierences between expected and actual experience
Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan inwstments
Changes in assumptions
Changes in proportion and difierences between

employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Subtotal
Less 50% of MAR-OCO Landfill balances

related to another entity
Total

$ 4,661,701 $ 2,180,590

5,042,858
724,945

15,618

1,289,995

1,925

6,692,259 7,225,373

(22,037) (23,ee4)
ï 6,670,222 ç 7,201,379

$1,289,995 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the County's contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year

ended December 31, 2019.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension

will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, Epense

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Total

$ 402,251
(27,337)

(1,254,552)
(952,271)

8,800
$ (1,823,10e)
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e. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017, actuarial valuation was determined using the following

actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial wluation date:
Measurement date of net pension liability (asset):
Actuarial cost method:
Asset wluation method:
Longterm expected rate of retum:
Discount rate:
Salary increases:

lnflation
SeniorityiMerit

Mortality
Post-reti rement adjustments*

December 31,2016
December 31,2017
Entry Age
Fair Market Value
7.2%
7.2%

3.2%
0.2% - 5.60/0

Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table
2.1%

No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment

return, actuarial experience and other factors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the

investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2015 using experience from

2012 - 2014.The total pension liability for December 31,2O17 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability

calculated from the December 31, 2016 actuarial valuation.

Long-term Expected Return on Plan Assefs. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan

investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future

real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for

each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long{erm expected rate of return by

weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding

expected inflation.
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The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are

summarized in the following table:

Current Asset
Allocation %

Long-term
Epected Nominal
Rate of Return %

Long-term
Epected Real

Rate of Return %

Core Fund Asset Class
Global Equities
Fixed lncome
lnfl ation Sensitirc Assets
Real Estate
Priwte Equity/Debt
Multi-asset
Total Core Fund

Variable Fund Asset Class
U.S. Equities
lntemational Equities
Total Variable Fund

50%
24.5o/o

15.5o/o

8o/o

8o/o

4o/o

110o/o

70%
30%
100%

8.2%
4.2o/o

3.8%
6.5%
9.4%
6.5%
7.3o/o

7.5o/o

7.8%
7.9%

5.3%
1.4o/o

1.0%
3.6%
6.5Yo

3.6%
4.4o/o

4.6%
4.9%
5.0%

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (lnflation) Forecast: 2.75o/o

Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, target percentages may differ

from actual monthly allocations

Srng/e Discount Rafe. A single discount rate of 7.20o/o was used to measure the total pension liability. This

single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.20o/o and a

long-term bond rate of 3.31o/o. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7 .20o/o expected rate of return

implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1o/o will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it

was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this

single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and

that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined

contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position

was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including expected dividends) of

current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was

applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (assef) to changes in the discount

rate.The following presents the County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated

using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the County's proportionate share of the net pension

liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20

percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease to Current
Discount Rate Discount Rate

(6 .2o/o\ (7.2o/o)

County's proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) $ 9,493,255 $ (3,669,1 15) $ (13,672,924)

Pension plan frduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is

available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.

5B

1% lncrease to
Discount Rate

(8.2Vo)
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f. Payable to the WRS

At December 31,2018 the County reported a payable of $194,552 for the outstanding amount of contributions

to the pension plan for the year ended December 31,2018.

8. Other Postemolovment Benefits Other Than Pension Benefits (OPEB)

a. Plan Description

The Plan is a single-employer defined benefit postemployment health plan that covers retired employees of

Marinette County, including MAR-OCO. Eligible retired employees have access to group medicalcoverage

through the County's group plan. County paid medical benefits are paid for as indicated below. All employees

of the County are eligible for the Plan if they meet the following age and service requirements below. The Plan

does not issue separate financial statements.

b. Benefits Provided

For employees who were hired before January 1,2012, and retire from the County after attaining age 55 and

20 years of service, the employee is eligible to remain on the County's medical insurance plan for eight years.

For employees who were hired before January 1,2012, and retire from the County after attaining age 62 and

15 years of service, the employee is eligible to remain on the County's medical insurance plan for eight years.

At January 1,2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

lnactiw employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 175

c. TotalOPEB Liability

The County's total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2018, rolled

forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2018.

d. ActuarialAssumptions

The total OPEB liability in the January 1 ,20'18 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial

assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial Valuation Date:

lnflation:

Salary lncreases:

lnvestment Rate of Return:

Healthcare cost trend rates:

January 1,2018
3.5o/o

2.0o/o

3.5o/o

6.5% decreasing by 0.50% every two years down to 5.0%, and

levelthereafter
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Mortality rates are a blend of the Death-in-Service and Retired Lives mortality rates from the "Wisconsin

Retirement System 2012 - 2014 Experience Study" with the MP-2015 generational improvement scale

(multiplied by 50%).

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1,2018 valuation were based on the results of the Wisconsin

Retirement System's Three-Year Experience Study for the period 2012lhrough 2014.

Discount rafe. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.5%. The discount assumption

reflects the time value of money as of the valuation date. This assumption is to be based on the estimated

long-term investment yield on the investments that are to be used to finance the payment of benefits. For

purposes of determining the net periodic cost for the valuarion, as discount assumption of 3.5% was used.

This rate is a blend of expected earning on County Funds and the current yield for 2O-year, tax-exempt general

obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The County did not have any funds in a

trust at year end.

e. Chanqes in the Net OPEB Liabilitv

lncrease (Decrease)
TotalOPEB

Liability
Balance at January 1,2018
Changes for the year:

Service cost
lnterest
Difierences between expected and

actual experience
Contributions - employer
Net inwstment income
Benefit payments
Administrati\ê expense

Net changes
Balance at December 31, 2018

$ 13,266,650

(627,557)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rafes. The

following presents the net OPEB liability of Marinette County, as well as what the County's net OPEB liability

would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.5%) or 1-percentage-

point higher (3.5%) than the current rate:

303,647
474,960

151,050
T--îæIZõ,o-

1% Decrease to
Discount Rate

(2.5Vo)

Current
Discount Rate

(3.50%)

1% lncrease to
Discount Rate

(4.50%)

Net OPEB Liability $ 14,453,317 $ 13,417,700 $ 12,457,915
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Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following presents the net

OPEB liability of Marinette County, as well as what the County's net OPEB liability would be if it were

calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (5.5% decreasing to 4.5o/o) or 1-

percentage-point higher (7.5% decreasing to 6.5%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

1olo Decrease
(5.5% decreasing

to 4.5%)

Healthcare Cost
Trend Rates

(6.5% decreasing
to 5.5%)

1% lncrease
(7.5% decreasing

to 6.5%)
Net OPEB liability $ 12,034,534 $ 13,417,700 $ 15,134,686

For the year ended December 31,2018, Marinette County recognized OPEB expense of $779,812

9. Closure and Post-Closure Care Costs

The Marinette-Oconto (MAR-OCO) Joint Landfill is a solid waste landfill operation owned 50% by Marinette County

and 50% by Oconto County. Marinette County records 50% of MAR-OCO's financialtransactions in an enterprise

fund on its financial statements. Federal and state laws and regulations require MAR-OCO to place covers on

landfill increments as they are filled (closure costs) and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions
(post-closure care) of the landfill site for forty years after the landfill stops accepting waste. Most closure costs are
paid when individual landfill increments reach capacity for accepting waste and post-closure care costs will normally

only be paid after the entire landfill stops accepting waste. ln accordance with GASB Statement No. 18, MAR-OCO

annually records an estimate of the closure and post-closure care costs as an operating expense during the life of
the landfill based on landfill capacity used compared to total estimated capacity available. The resultant liabilities for

these estimated operating expenses are reduced each year for actual payments made. An analysis of the

estimated liabilities for closure and post-closure care costs on December 31, 2018 follows:

Landfill
Closure

Care

Landfill
Post closure

Care
Total estimated costs
Percentage of storage capacity used as of December 31, 2018
Total estimated liability for costs as of December 31, 2018
Less closure costs paid
Liabilities as of December 31, 2018

$ 1,289,256 $
79.38o/o

2,451,280
64.610/o

1,583,772

$ g++,092 $ '1,583,772

The above total costs of $344,697 and $1 ,583,772 for closure and post-closure care are estimates and subject to

changes resulting from inflation/deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws or regulations.

A portion of the above post-closure care costs of $1,583,772 is being met through annual deposits into a separate

cash and investment account for the enterprise fund. Marinette County's 50% share of the balance in the account

on December 31,2018 was $781 ,121. ln addition, MAR-OCO has established an irrevocable letter of credit in the

amount of $900,000 (County share of $450,000) to provide additional funding for landfill closure. ln accordance with

Wisconsin Statutes, the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources is the beneficiary of the letter of credit.

1,023,422
678,726
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10. Fund Equitv

ln the financial statements, the governmental fund balances are classified in the following categories:

Non-speNoReLe FuNo BALANcES

Portions of governmental fund balances are not in a spendable form or are required to be maintained intact. Fund

balances in non-spendable form consisted of the following:

$9, 156,263

Resrrucreo Fu¡¡o BnmttcEs AND Ner Posrro¡¡
Portions of governmental fund balances are restricted for specific purposes by constraints imposed by external
providers. At December 31,2018, restricted fund balances consisted of the following:

General Fund
Prepaid items
Delinquent property taxes
Long-term loans receilable
Total Nonspendable Fund Balances

Special Rerenue Funds
Prepaid items

Total Nonspendable Fund Balances - Goremmental Balance Sheet

General Fund
Sheriff Department honor guard uniforms
Sheriff Department canine
Family counseling
Veterans transportation
Veterans emergency assistance
Wildlife habitat
County forest land acquisition

Special Rerenue Funds
Land records modemization
Jail assessments
Dog licenses
Nicolet library grant
Library donations
Peshtigo library - McCauley trust
Peshtigo library - Falkenberg trust
Community Dewlopment Block Grant

2016 Capital projects

Total Restricted Fund Balances - Goremmental Balance Sheet

Outstanding Loan Balance - Community Derclopment Block Grant
Total Restricted Net Position - Statement of Net Position

$ 351,548
2,602,020

201,925
3,155,493

770

3,666
8,108

28,026
47,961
15,137
40,662
6,793

150,353

287,686
100,592

1,000
15,296

124,982
178,452

19,393
252,070
979,471

572,344

1,702,168

648,596

$

62

$ 2,350,764



Marinette County, Wisconsin
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018

Con¿n¡lrreo Furuo BRIR¡¡ces

Portions of governmental fund balances have been committed to specific purposes by the County Board.

These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the County Board approves the change. At
December 31,2018, committed fund balances consisted of the following:

General Fund
Property tax reduction fund
Service lewl stabilization
Forestry heavy equipment
Tourism
Land information
Environmental site assessment

General Fund
Capital maintenance
Subsequent years budget
County Department budget carryo\ers
Total Assigned Fund Balances

$ 11,708,908
2,000,000

215,194
44,050

137,000
23,661

3,799,909

Debt Service Fund

Total Committed Fund Balances

834,881

$ 18,763,603

Assrc rrleo Fu¡¡o BRmNces

Portions of governmental fund balances have been assigned to specific purposes by County management with

approval of the County's Finance Committee. These amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the

Finance Committee approves the change. At December 31,2018, assigned fund balances consisted of the

following:

14,128,813
Special Rerenue Funds

County roads and bridges
Health and Human Services
Solid waste longterm care
Forest and parks derclopment
Rewlving loan fund

2,072,890
71,516

267,476
408,268
979,759

$ 868,354
250,000
982,075

v 2,100,429

UruRSSrcruro Fu¡ro B¡r-RNces

General fund unassigned fund balance on December 31, 2018 was $9,686,311 and after an interfund loan to

cover the Teen Court negative fund balance of $274, was $9,686,037 respectively. Of the $9,686,311 balance,

$2,339,443 was allocated for contingencies and $1,836,462 was allocated for cash flow requirements.
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11. Minimum Fund Balance Policv

The County has adopted the following fund balance policy:

Total General Fund unassigned fund balance is to be maintained at a level of no less than 17o/o of total regular

budgeted general fund operating expenditures.

$ 23,961,270
17o/o

-S'----"0'44'ie-

The General Fund unassigned fund balance on December 31,2018 totaled $9,473,647

NOTE D. OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Manaqement

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft, damage or destruction of assets; errors or

omissions; employee health and accident claims; or acts of God. The County has chosen to retain a portion of the

risks through self-insurance programs and has also purchased insurance to transfer other risks to outside parties.

Financial transactions for the foregoing are recorded in a self-insurance internal service fund. On December 31,

2018 the self-insurance internal service fund had net position of $801 ,790 allocated to the following risk

management programs:

$ 5,462
91,928

704,400
$ 801,790

A description of the County's risk management programs follows:

Prooertv and Liabilitv lnsurance
During 1988, the County became a member of the Wisconsin County Mutual lnsurance Corporation (WCMIC).

WCMIC was created by several governmental units within the State of Wisconsin to provide general, auto and other

liability insurance services to its members. The County pays premiums to WCMIC for its liability insurance

coverage. The actuary for WCMIG determines charges to its members for the expected losses and loss adjustment

expenses on which premiums are based. Premium charges for WCMIC are recorded as expenses of the self-

insurance fund and are financed by charges to various funds of the County. The County's self-insured retention limit

is $25,000 for each occurrence with a maximum limit of $100,000 annually. A separate financial report is issued

annually by WCMIC.

The County also purchases commercial insurance policies for various property and other liability risks. Payments of

premiums for these policies are also recorded as expenses of the self-insurance fund and are recovered by

charges to various funds of the County.

Budgeted 2018 General Fund Operating Expenditures

17o/o oftotal budgeted regular General Fund Expenditures

Property and liability insurance
Health and Dental
Workers compensation
Net Position
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DECEMBER 31, 2018

Health lnsurance
Beginning January 1,2010 the County became participants in the Wisconsin County Associations Group Health

Trust (GHT) for employee health lnsurance coverage. The County pays premiums to the GHT for its health

insurance coverage. The actuary for GHT determines charges to the County for the expected health insurance

claims. Premium charges for the GHT are recorded as expenses in the various County departments. Employee co-

pays offset the County's health insurance expense.

Workers Comoensation
The County has established a self-insurance fund to finance workers compensation awards for County employees.

The program is funded by charges to County departments. The program also is supplemented by stop loss

protection, which limits the County's annual liability. Fund expenses and the accrual of claim liabilities are

accounted for in the same manner as discussed previously for the health self-insurance program. Changes in the

fund's claims liability amount as follows:

Year
Liability

January 1,

Current Year Claim s
and Changes in

Estimates
Claim

Pa¡rments
Liability

December 31,

2016
2017
2018

$ $ 266,074
302,890
180,663

266,074 $
302,890
180,663

$

2. Continoencies
a. The County participates in a number of federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject

to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. An audit under Uniform Grant Guidance

has been conducted but final acceptance is still pending. Accordingly, the County's compliance with applicable

grant requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be

disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the County expects such

amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

b. From time to time, the County is party to other various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the

outcome of such matters cannot be forecast with certainty, it is the opinion of management and Corporation

Counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on

the County's financial position or results of operations.

3. Uocominq Accountinq Pronouncements

ln January 2017,the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. The Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities and addresses financial reporting for these activities. This statement is effective for
reporting periods beginning after June 15,2018. The County is currently evaluating the impact this standard will

have on the financial statements when adopted.

ln June 2017 , the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The Statement establishes a single model for lease

accounting based on the principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. This statement

is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The County is currently evaluating the impact

this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted.
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset

Wisconsin Retirement System

u

Plan Year

Ending

Proportion of the

Net Pension

Liability (Asset)

Proportionate

Share of the Net

Pension Liability
(Asset)

Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability
(Asset) as a Percentage

of Covered Pavroll

Plan Fiduciary Net

Position as a Percentage

of the Total Pension

Liability (Asset)

Covered

Employee

Payroll

12t31t14
12131115
12131116
12t31t17

0.124750o/o (3,064,193) t 16,438,902 18.640/o 1O2.74o/o

0.1243060/o 16.649.208 12.13o/o 98.20%
0.123600% 16.884.519 6.03% 99.',120/o

O.1235760/o 11 16.988.726 21.600/o 1O2.93o/o

Fiscal Year

Ending

12131114
12t31t15
12t31t16
12131117

12t31t18

See notes to required supplementary information

Contractually

Required

Contributions

Contributions in

Relation to the

Contractually

Required

Contributions

Contribution

Deficiency

Excess Covered Payroll

Contributions as a

Percentage of Covered

Payroll

16.438.902s 7.39o/o1.214.799 1 214,799 $
16.649.208 7.15Vo1.190.983 r0,983

16.884.519 6.98%1 1 489
'16.988,726 7.32o/o243,561

289.995 17.556.812 7.35o/o
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule Of Changes ln Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

$

2018 2017

Total OPEB liability
Service cost
lnterest
Benefit payments

Net change in total OPEB liability
Total OPEB liabilig - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending (a)

Plan fìduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability

Covered-employee payroll

County's OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

See notes to required supplementary information.

303,647
474,960

293,379
472,332

(700,879)

$

(627,557)
151,050

13,266,650
64,832

13,201,818

$ 1 3,417,700 $ 13,266,650

0.00%

$ 6,526,111 $

205.60%

0.00%

6,259,908

212o/o
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan

FortheYear Ended December 31,2018

2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution (ADC)

Contributions in relation to the ADC

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

$ 1,089,976
627 557

$ 462,4',19

$ 6,526,1 11

1Oo/o

$ r ,064,139
1,064,139

$

$ 6,259,908

,170/o

Key Methods and Assumption Used to Calculate ADC

Actuarial cost method

Asset valuation method

Amortization method

Discount rate

lnflation

See notes to required supplementary information

Entry Age Normal

Market Value
20Year LevelDollar
3.50%

3.50%
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NOTE A. WISCONSIN RETIREMENT SYSTEM

There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in WRS.

The amounts reported for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end that occurred within the prior fiscal
year. The County is required to present the last ten fiscal years of data; however accounting standards allow the
presentation of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.

The proportionate share of the net pension asset of $3,669,115 includes $24,369 of both Oconto and Marinette County's
portion of the MAR-OCO landfill.
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Revenues

General Fund
Forthe Year Ended December 31,2018

Budoeted Amounts
Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budqet

Taxes
General property taxes
Forest crop
Payment in lieu of taxes
Retained sales tax
Real estate transfer fees
lnterest on taxes
Total taxes

lntergovernmental
Federal aids

SSA inmate incentive program
State aids

Shared and utility taxes
Exempt computers
Victim witness program
Circuit court grants
Forest roads
Police traini ng/ATV/Snowmobile/Other
Boat and water safety
Anti-Drug grants (Federal????)
Emergency government grants
Hazmat
Homeland security funding
Transportation
Child support program

ATV/Snowmobile trail maintenance and grooming

Wildlife habitat management
Targeted run-off management
S.W.R.M. automation grant
Forestry administrator
Hazard mitigation grant
Sustainable forestry grant
Veterans service awards
Aquatic invasive species
Conservation grants - other

Charges for services
Sheriff - local
Sheriff - state
Clerk
Finance
Forestry
Human Resources
Land information
Efension

Total intergovernmental

Regulation and compliance
Zoning permits and fees
Sanitary permits and reviews
Non-metallic mining fees
Occupational licenses
County ordinance forfeitures and defaults
County share of state fines and forfeitures
Total regulation and compliance

10.699.620 10,715,087 10,749,325

10,000 10,000 11,039

$ $9,669,498
63,972

301,000
150

90,000
575,000

9,669,498 $
79,439

301,000
150

90,000
57s,000

9,669,498
149,847
300,140

173
102,779
526,888

70,408
(860)

23
't2,779

(48,112)

$

34.238

'1,039

1,633,684
25,000
30,000

178,559
73,745

131,836
10,000
11,000
66,197
10,000
5,000
2,200

615,622

1,633,684
25,000
30,000

178,559
73,745

131,836
10,000
11,000
99,669
10,000
5,000
2,200

615,622

1,816,273
25,736
31,274

190,334
72,454

114,966
11,395

9,911
73,685

8,979
2,200
2,788

639,510

182,589
736

1,274
11,775
(1,291)

(16,870)
1,395

(1,08e)
(2s,e84)

(1,O21)
(2,800)

588
23,888

320,718
110,057
300,000
225,314

63,583
3,493
7,350

10,000
10,s00
40,422

25,000
100,000

3,000
87,207
59,643

64,000
4.426

346,515
171,767
300,000
503,290

63,583
3,493
7,350

10,000
10,500
64,843

25,000
100,000

3,000
87,207
65,372
12,538
64,000
4,426

340,612
141,419
33,651

503,290
s1,426

2,834

10,000
9,593

25,453

5,294
88,472
s,968

87,436
144,665

18,094
64,610

(5,903)
(30,348)

(266,34e)

(12,157)
(65e)

(7,350)

(eo7)
(3e,3e0)

4.237,556 4,679,199 4, 543,361

(1e,706)
(11,528)

2,968
229

79,293
5,556

610
(4,426)

(135,838)

24,950
84,000
24,OOO

40
112,000

74.000

24,950
84,000
24,000

40
131,859
76,401

22,400
109,080

29,117
60

124,525
81,882

(2,550)
25,080

5,117
20

(7,334)
5,481

318,990
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Revenues

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31,2018

Budoeted Amounts
Original Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budqet

Charges for services
County clerk fees
Treasurer
Child support
Circuit court
Witness fees
Family court counseling
Corporation counsel fees
Guardian ad litem fees
District attorney charges
Register of deeds
Sheriff fees
Board of prisoners at county jail

lnmate reimbursements
Jail canteen
Accident photos and reports
Coroner fees
Library
Parks
County forest
Land information fees
Camp Bird
Extension program
Total charges for services

Gommercial
lnvestment income
Loan repayments - PrinciPal
Loan repayments - lnterest
Other - interest
Rent of county buildings and offices
Land leases
Sale of county property
Total commercial

Miscellaneous
CDBG and MAR-OCO administrative
Clerk of courts
Corporation counsel
County Board
District attorney
Family court commissioner
Finance department
Forestry department
Human resources
Maintenance
Land Conservation
Land lnformation
Donations
lnsurance recoveries and dividends
Total miscellaneous

3,500
62,250
9,625

152,000
1,000
8,500

650
81,2s0
10,000

220,100
319,400
130,000
115,000

34,000
1,700

40,020
34,000

331,500
3,598,466

35,700
71,250
12,457

5,272,368

3,s00
65,221
9,625

159,5s8
1,000
8,500

650
129,810

10,000
220,100
325,883
130,000
115,000
50,849

1,700
40,o20
35,423

331,500
3,907,808

35,700
71,250

4,141
66,805

9,795
174,230

722
8,540
1,250

103,576
8,516

227,502
279,892
142,492
126,164
50,849

3,479
4s,900
31,729

322,419
2,896,502

28,109
61,086

641
1,s84

170
14,672

(278)
40

600
(26,234\

(1,484)
7,402

(45,ee1)
12,492
11,164

12 682

1,779
5,880

(3,6e4)
(9,081)

(1,011,306)
(7,591)

(10,164)
(3,041)I 641

665.779 4,603,339 (1,062,440)5,

720,000

22,868
55,610
22,806

544,702
200,000
160,360
22,868
55,610
22,806

116,000

589,814
1s0,000
160,360
21,209
54,647
22,806
92,373116 000

1j22346

45,112
(50,000)

(1,659)
(e63)

(23,627\
(31,137)937

8,240
7,000
1,571

10,000
2,400

40,000
5,000

25,700
399,823

18,000

091 209

8,240
7,000
1,571

23,107
16,228
1,452

651
12,621

1,419
68,566

244,804
14,020

404,924
339
491

43,955
114.082

14,867
9,228
(1 1e)

651

2,621
(e81)
1,777

239,804
(e80)
5,101

339
491

9,755
7s,390

10,000
2,4QO

66,789
5,000

15,000
399,823

34,200
38,692

517,734 588,715 946.659 357,944

$ 21,983,552 $ 23,112,376 $ 22,300,957 $ (811,419)Total revenues
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Expenditures

General Fund
FortheYear Ended December 31,2018

Budgeted Amounts
Final Actual

Variance with
Final Budqet

General government
County board
Administrator
County clerk
Treasurer
Finance
Elections
Property management
Human resources
lndependent auditing
Special accounting
District attorney
Victim witness program
Corporation counsel
Circuit court
Clerk of court
Family court commissioner
Family court commissioner - mediation services
Law library
Coroner
Register of deeds
Land information
Courthouse facilities
Tax deed expense
Personal property chargeback
lllegal taxes
Employee health insurance
Retiree health insurance
State special charges
Contingency
Total general government

Public protection
Sheriff and traffic
Central dispatch
Civil service commission
Fire suppression
Emergency management
Emergency management EMPG grant
Emergency management EPCRA grant
Emergency management hazmat grant
Emergency management other grants
Ambulance and rescue squads
Ja¡l
Total public protection

Health
Committee on aging
Child support program
Employee wellness
Veterans relief
Veterans service officer
Burial of veterans
Total health

204,184
237,344
163,756
255,616

1,367,813
67,700
38,643

216,849
25,545

5,850
235,O21

62,730
163,504
334,O24
492,239
201,592

10,000
4,500

117,244
237,487
617,798

1,913,146
27,950

500
2,000

214,300
575,944

1,832
575,000

239,939
256,837
1 83,1 84
279,134
643,643

67,700
38,152

234,O24
25,125

5,850
250,359

65,131
173,729
424,826
523,427
208,750

10,000
4,500

117,244
290,095
649,247

1,948,474
24,455

4,336

203,314
256,837
181,906
277,769
643,643

62,921
31,237

234,024
25,125

5,850
238,603

65,131
172,540
424,826
523,427
199,783

10,000
4,461

97,965
285,743
600,924

1,322,582
24,455
4,290

36,625

1,278
1,365

4,779
6,915

11,756

1,189

8,967

39
19,279
4,352

48,323
625,892

35.061

46

38,546
520,577

1,832
35,061

38,546
520,577

1,832

8,370,111 7,264,177 .311 805,866

4,554,760
1,869,804

1,775
1,500

99,307
48,289
25,744
10,000
5,000

32,050

s,065,385
1,s40,085

1,775
1,500

122,102
48,369
25,744
10,000
40,053
32,050

2,677,158

5,065,213
1,532,88s

246
495

108,532
44,622
22,790

8,776
11,633
32,050

2.677.158

172
7,200
1,529
1,005

13,s70
3,747
2,954
1,224

28,420

612
9,286,841 9.564.221 9,s04.400 59,821

144,479
686,981

15,000
3,620

163,248
3,0s0

144,838
687,666

18,500
2,749

172,382
2,146

144,838
670,717

18,500
2,749

172,382
2,146

16,949

1,016,378
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Detailed Comparison of Budgeted and Actual Expenditures

General Fund
FortheYear Ended December 31,2018

Budqeted Amounts
nal F¡nal Actual

Variance with
Final Budoet

Culture and recreation
Library
Fairs and exhibits
Snowmobile/ATV trailsÂlVater recreation
Parks
Total culture and recreat¡on

Education
University extension program
U.W. Center
Total education

Forestry
County forest
Forest roads
Forest equipment
Total forestry

Conservation and development
Land Conservation
Wildlife habitat management
Wildlife damage
Hazardous mitigation grant
Lake Noquebay dam
Aquatic invasive species and other lake grants

Targeted run-off management
Non-metallic mining
Regional planning commission
Conservation camp
Tourism
Economic development
Total conservation and development

Total expenditures

1,103,594
10,000

321,342
798,809

1,115,242
10,000

349,834
789,879

1,093,087
'10,000

340,049
779,304

22,155

9,785
10,575

2.233,745 2,222,440 42,515

252,846
86,000

276,589
86,000

362,589

184,664
84,526

91,925
1.474

338.846 269,190 93,399

1,197,831
73,745

255,000
1,526,576

1,215,601
136,87s
255,000

1,175,087
135,584
184,245

40,514
1,291

70,755
1 .476 1.494,916 112,560

475,985
17,698

102,359
3,493
3,000

20,607
300,000

23,222
22,280

9,200
128,103

82,826
1,188,773

769,748
17,698

164,069
12,657
3,000

4s,028
300,000

23,222
22,280

9,200
102,957
82,826

7s9,085
6,680

130,641
11,998

3,000
24,807
33,651
16,115
22,279

6,s40
102,956

82.826

10,663
11,018
33,428

659

20,221
266,349

7,107
I

2,660
1

1,s52,685 352,107

$ 23,961 ,270 $ 23,644,384 $ 22,1 61 ,1 67 $ 1 ,483,217
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special revenue funds

December 31 , 201 I

DOG LICENSE
FUND COUNTY LIBRARY

COUNTY
REVOLVING LOAN

FUND

COMM
DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT

ASSETS
Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
lnterest receivable
Loans receivable
Due from other funds

Restricted assets - pooled cash and investments
Total essets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to general fund
Due to other funds

Total liabil¡ties

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Loans receivable

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted
Comm¡tted
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (defìcits)

$ 6,777 $ 14,713
962

971,079
10,000

264,057

255,313

648,596

$ $

$ 6.777 $ 15,675 $ 1,245,136 $ 903,909

$ 5,777 $ 379 $ 1,320 $ 3;243

5,777 379 1,320 3,243

264,O57 648,596

5,777 379 265,377 651,839

1,000 15,296

15,296

$ 15,675

252,070
979,759

979,759 252,0701,000

$ 6,777 $ 1.245.136 $ 903,909

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOLID WASTE - LONG
TERM CARE

$

TEEN COURT
LIBRARY

DONATIONS
PESHTIGO LIB

MCCAULEY TRUST

PESHTIGO LIB
FALKENBERG

TRUST

FORESTRY &
PARKS

ÞEVELOPMENT

$ $ $ $ $

789

123,219
425

2,705

177,698

952

21,994

104

408,390

266,687r 267,476 $ $ 126,349 $ 178,650 $ 22,498 408,390$

$ $ 52
36

186

$ 1,367 $ 198 $ $ 122

274 '1,367 198
2,705
2,705 122

274 1,367 198 2,705 122

267,476
(274)
(274)

124,982

124,982

$ 126,349

178,452 19,393

178,452 19,393

178,650 $

408,268

408,268

22,098 $ 408,390

267,476

$ 267,476 $ $

75



MARINETTE COUNTY, wlSCONSIN
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Spec¡al revenue funds
December 3'1, 2018

ASSETS
Pooled cash and ¡nvestments
Accounts receivable
lnterest receivable
Loans receivable
Due from other funds

Restricted assets - pooled cash and investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to general fund
Due to other funds

Total l¡abil¡t¡es

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Loans receivable

Total liebilit¡es and deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficits)

Total liabilities and fund balances (defìcits)

$

JAIL ASSESSMENT

98,629
2,350

-s--100p-75'

LAND RECORDS
MODERNIZATION

20I6 CAPITAL
PROJECTS

Total Nonmajor Special
revenue funds

$ 287,686 $ 572,344 $ 2,937,842
13,737
1,845

912,653
2,705

266,687
$ 287,686 $ 572,344 4,135,1169

$ 387 $ $ $ 12,845
36

186
2,705

15,772

912,653

387

387 928,425

r 00,592 287,686 572,344

572,344

8 572,344

I ,551 ,815
1,655,503

(274)
3,207,044

4.135.469

100,592 287,686

$ 100,979 $ 287,686 $
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31,2018

DOG LICENSE
FUND

COUNTY
LIBRARY

COUNTY
REVOLVING
LOAN FUND

COMM
DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK GRANT

REVENUES
lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Charges for services
Loan repayments - Principal
Loan repayments - lnterest
lnterest on investments
Sale of county property
Donations
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health
Culture and recreation
Conservation and developm ent

Total expenditures
Excess (defìciency) of revenues over
expenditures

orHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

$$$ 7,712 $
5,938

180,374
9,665

14,',t75

1 13,086
15,275
7,664

5,938 7 712 204,214 r 36,025

5,938
6,194

33 315 353,813
5,938 6,194 33,315 353,813

1 ,518 170,899 (217,788\

r,o; ,,\:]i?
-s---m00" -$_-i579õ- 979,759 $ 252,970

170,899
808,860

(217,788)
469 858

$

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SOLID WASTE .
LONG TERM CARE TEEN COURT

LIBRARY
DONATIONS

PESHTIGO LIB
MCCAULEY TRUST

PESHTIGO LIB
FALKENBERG

TRUST

FORESTRY &
PARKS

DEVELOPMENT

$ $ $ $ $ $

2,083 1,984 214

15,252
69,168

91,867
300105 12,812

2,083 105 12,812 984

5,870

214 176,587

I,039

3,151

27,190 76 170,568

1513 1,039

(e34)

27 190 5,870 76 170,568

(1,068) (14,378\ (3,886) 138 6,019

(1,068)
268,544

(e34)
660

(14,378)
139,360

(3,886)
182,338

138
19,255

6,019
402,249

$ 267,476 T---(2741 s 124,9E2 $ 178,452 $ 19,393 S 408,26E
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

JAIL
ASSESSMENT

LAND RECORDS
MODERNIZATION

2016 CAPITAL
PROJECTS

Total Nonmajor Special
revenue funds

REVENUES
lntergovernmental
Regulation and compliance
Charges for services
Loan repayments - Principal
Loan repayments - lnterest
lnterest on investments
Sale of county property
Donations
Miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government
Public protection
Public ways and facilities
Health
Culture and recreation
Conservation and development

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures

oTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning
Fund balances - ending

40,770 144,597

$$$

14,361

3,000

7,712
283,'163

69,1 68
293,460

24,940
40,481
91,867
't3,217

$
44,183 217,790

0003

44,183 217 790

144,597

17,361 827

40,770
147,494
78,409

293, I 30
119,179

3,151
5,938

209,898
387,128

1,018,424225,903

3,413

3,4't3

73 193 (208,542) (191,416)

(151,471) (191,471\

97 't79
73,193

2',t4,493
(400,013)

972,357
(382,887)
3,589,931

$ 100,592 ï 287,686 $ 572,344 $ 3,207,O44
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Net Position

Nonmajor lnternal Service Funds
December 31, 201 I

lnformation
Services Motor Pool Self lnsurance

Total Nonmajor
lnternal Service

Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:

Pooled cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes levied for subsequent year
Prepaid items
lnventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits from others
Unearned revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

Property taxes

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$ 791,978
771

$ 137,652 $ $ 1,329,523
888

103,820
508,751

17,172
1 ,960,I 54

2,435,031
(1,348,992)

399,893
117

103,820
493,14015,61 1

17,172
825,532 137 652 996,970

1,745,029
(806.157)

690,002
(542,835)

938.872 147,167 1,086,039

1,764,404 284,819 996,970 3,046,193

28,768
22,073

2,079 75,487
11,021
4,852

106,334
33,094
4,852
9,788I 788

60,629 2,079 91,360 154.068

103,820 103.820

938,872 147,167
764,904 135,572

__$____1,7!.3rc_ _-$_ 2.92-739-
801 790

_s_8o!*790_

1,086,039
1,702,266

$ 2.788.305
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Net Position

lnternal Service Funds
FortheYear Ended December 31,2018

lnformation
Services Motor Pool Self lnsurance

$ 1.654.794 $ 150,123

Total lnternal
Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operation and maintenance
Claims and premiums
Depreciation
Total operating expenses

Operating loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
General property taxes
Sale of county property
lnsurance recoveries and dividends
Miscellaneous revenues
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

I ncome before contriþutions

Capital contributions

Change in net position

Total net posit¡on - beginning

$ 586,602 $ 2,391,519

1,528,529 96,864

6s.074127,536
623,186

1,625,393
623,'186
192,610

1.656.065 161,938 623,1 86 2,441,189

(1,271\ (11.815) (36,s84) (49,670)

841
8,791
1,786

18,200
23,180

92,749

229

92,749
19,041
32,200

786
11,418 41,380 92.978 145,776

10,147 29,s65 56,394

100,000

96,106

100.000

10,147

1,693,629

29,565

253,174

1s6,394

64s,396

196,106

2,592,199

Total net position - ending

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

$ 1,703,776 $ 282,739 $ 801,790 $ 2.788.305
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows

lnternal Service Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

INFORMATION
MOTOR POOL SELF INSURANCE

150,123 $

Total

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash from interfund
Cash receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Property taxes
lnsurance recoveries
Transfer in
Miscellaneous revenue

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of assets

Net cash used by capital and related f¡nancing activit¡es

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year
Balances - end of the year

Reconciliation of operat¡ng income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activit¡es:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided (used)

by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in assets and l¡abilities:
Accounts payable - interfund
Accounts payable - supplier
Customer receivables
lnventory
Other operating receivables
Salãries & benefits payable
Prepâid items

Net cash provided (used) by operating ãctiv¡ties

CASH RECONCILIATION
Actual balance - end of year

The notes to financial statements are an ¡ntegral part of this statement.

$ 1,392,824
263,022

(576,660)
(929,606) 197.100)

$ 563,603 $
22,981

(s7,531)

2,106,550
286,003

(674,1 91 )

149,580 53,023

(912,93il (1,939,643)
(423,884') (221,281\

8,791

1,786

23,1 80
92,749

229
100,000

92,749
32,200

100,000
1,786

226,73510,577 23,1 80 192,978

(100,000) (1 18,148)
18,200841

(99,159) (9e,948)

60,998 (23,745)
730,980 161,397

__$___________7s!.92{L __$__________- !-gZ-A5a

$ (1,271) $ (11,815) $

127,536 65,074

21,280
1,053
1,552

(236)

(1,203)
633

__$___________:!.4988A.

$ 791,978 $ 137,652 $

(36,584) $ (4e,670)

192,610

(230,906)
630,799

(2't8,148)
19,041

(1 99,107)

(193,653)
1,523,176

$ 1.329.523$ ?oo ao?

11,O71
84, I 66
11,053

(1 1,071)
5,141

11,071
105,210

12,106
1,552

(1 1 ,071)
3,938

__$________E3-023_

399,893 $ 1,329,523
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WISCONSIN
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Agency Funds

December 31,2018

SECTION 125
FLEX PLAN

DISTRICT TAX
COLLECTIONS

MAR-OCO
DEPOSITS

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Delinquent property taxes

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Tax collections
Forest income
Special assessments
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

$$

WELLNESS

$ 2,485 $ 18,307 $ 4,474,885 $
150,274

1,543,099

$ 2.485 :T rgro? $ 4.625.159 $ 1.543,099

$ 4,179,669 $
290,851
154,639

2,485 76
17,625

606
1,543,099

$ 2.485 _$ r 8.307_ $ 4.625.159 $ 1,543.099
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CLERK OF
COURTS TRUST

DEPOSITS
SHERIFF INMATE

DEPOSITS

HHS
PROÏECTIVE

PAYEE
DEPOSITS Total Agency funds

$ 451,214 $ 45,666 $ 103,661 $ 6,639,3r 7
150.274

45,666 _$_1_A3É01_ $ 6.789.591s 451.214 $

$

451,214 45,666 103,661

4,179,669
290,851
154,639

2,561
2,161,265

606

$$$

$ 451.214 $ 45.666 $ 103,661 _$ 6,789Æl_
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ADDITIONAL INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

FOR BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Ctftonla¡sonAlcn LLP

CLAconnec'tcom

lndependent auditors' report on internal control over financial report¡ng and on

compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed

in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the County Board

Marinette County, Wisconsin

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General

of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate

discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Marinette

County, Wisconsin, (the "County") as of and for the year ended December 31 ,2018, and the related notes to the

financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial statements, and have issued our report

thereon dated August 8, 2019. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of

the Committee on Aging, Association for Business & lndustry and the Stephenson Public Library Foundation, as

described in our report on the County's financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other

auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on

separately by those auditors. The financial statements of the Association for Business & lndustry and the Stephenson

Public Library Foundation were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County's internal control over

financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the

purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the County's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

County's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control,

such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the County's financial statements will not be

prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by

those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was

not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be

material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A member of

ü

Nexiao lnternational
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COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County's financial statements are free from material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial

statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our

audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Sfandards.

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of County's internal control or on compliance.

This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govern ment Auditing Standards in considering

the County's internal control and on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose

zlP
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Green Bay, Wisconsin

August 8, 2019
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FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS



CliftonLa¡sonAllen LLP

CLAconnecl.corn

lndependent auditors' report on compliance for each major federal and state
program and on internal control over compl¡ance required by the Uniform
Guidance and the Sfafe Single Audit Guidelines

To the County Board

Marinette County, Wisconsin

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM

We have audited Marinette County, Wisconsin's ("the County's") compliance with the types of compliance requirements

described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement and the State Single Audit

Guidelines issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration that could have a direct and material effect on each of
the County's major federal and state programs for the year ended December 31,2018. The County's major federal and

state programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs. Marinette County's basic financial statements include the operations of the Marinette County

Committee on Aging, lnc, as a discretely presented component unity, which expended $354,770 in federal awards

which is not included in Marinette County's schedule of expenditures of federal awards during the year ended

December 31,2018. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of Marinette County Committee on

Aging, lnc. because the component units issue separate audited financial statements, which included an audit of

compliance.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of
its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

AUD¡TORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County's major federal and state programs

based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to

financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States;

the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the Sfafe Sing/e Audit Guidelines

issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration. Those standards, Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit

Guidelines require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance

with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major

federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County's

compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state

program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County's compliance.

A member of

g

Nexiao lnternational 87



OPINION ON EAGH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM

ln our opinion, the County complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to

above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended
December 31,2018.

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

Management of the County is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we

considered the County's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and
material effect on each major federal or state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal or state program and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit
Guidelines, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control

over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a

material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the fìrst paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance and the
Sfafe Sing/e Audit Guidelines. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

¿ZP
GliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Green Bay, Wisconsin
August 8, 201 I
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MARINETTE COUNTY, YVISCONSIN

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended Deæmber 31, 2018

Pass-Through
Aoenw

WI DHS

Brown County
Brown County
Brom County
Brom County

WI DNR

Direct Program

WI DOJ
WI DOJ

Pass-Through
Entity

ldentifying
Numbêr

't5/.710

Revenues
(Aærued) Accrued
Defered Cash (Defered)
Revenue Received Revenue Total Subrec¡p¡ent

1l'1118 (Refunded) 12131118 Expend¡turs Pâvment
Gmntor Aaency/Federal Progrem T¡tle

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Spæiel Supplementâl Nutrition Progrem for Women, lnfants, and Children

SNAP Cluster
State Administrative Matching Grents for Food Stamp Progrãm
State Administretive Match¡ng Grents for Food Stemp Program
Stete Administrative Matching Grants for Food Stamp Program
State Admin¡strative Metch¡ng Grants for Food Stamp Program

Total State Adm¡nistrat¡ve Metching Grants for Food Stamp Prcgram and SNAP Cluster

Totel U.S. Deparlnent of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF INTERIOR
National F¡re Plen

U,S, DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Bullet Proof Vest Pertnership

COPS Anti Hero¡n Task Force
COPS Anti Methamphetamine

Total U.S. Deparrnent ofJustice

U,S, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
H¡ghway Safety Cl$ter

Alæhol Enforcement
Seâtbelt Énloræment

Total H¡ghwey Safety Cluster

lnleregency Hærdous Materials Public Sector Tra¡n¡ng and Plenn¡ng Grants

Total U.S. Department of T€nsportation

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
Watercraft lnspectoß WRISC from USFS

CFDA
Number

10.557

10.561
10.561
10.561
'10.561

'15.228

16.607

(23,164) $

(r?
(1,423\

128,748 $ 58,345 $ 163,929 $

Unknom

N/A

HP-WX.OOO6

5,'149
't7,12'l_

490,758

7,2U

2,955

7,'t45
3,078

13,1 78

61

561
277
2U

4,595
10,500

1,423

1,287
6,62'l

(117,199) 346,356 75,402 304,559 ____-______:_
(1 19,355) 362,874 83,310 326,829 _____--____:_

16.710
'16.710

(425191 49'1,622 141,655

3,024 4,2'10

2,955

(908) 5,U2 2,211
11.909) 3,768 1,219

(2.817\ 9,610 6,385

20.616
20.609

WI DOT
WI DOT

3717
3718

(3,1s8)
(3,384)

(6,582)

(6'582)

(3,884)
(3,279)
(7,163)

(3,000)

47,'t85
44,670

91,855

2,200

,055

43,987
41,286

85,273

2,200

87,473

20.703

93.539

WI DMA

WI DHS

550

560620

155015
15f)50

1 55020
3306

600

3,884

0110676

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Spæ¡el Êduætion-Grents for lnfants and Famil¡es

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Med¡care Enrollment Ass¡stence Program

Publ¡c Health Emergency Preparednss Aligned Cooperat¡ve Agræments
Publ¡c Health Emergency Preparedness Al¡gned Cooperative Agræments

Total Publ¡c Health Emergency Preperedness Aligned Cooperative Agreements

lmmun¡ätion Cooperative Agreements
Promoting Safe and Stable Familis

Capac¡ty Building Ass¡stance to Strengthen Public Hea¡th lmmun¡ætion
lnfrastructure and Performence

66.,t69

u.181

93.071

D¡ckinson Conservetion Distric{

WI DHS

WI DHS

36,664 36,664 

----j-600

93.074
93.069

WI DHS
WI DHS

93.268
93.556

WI DHS
WI DCF

45,237 '11,504 53,¡162 ____:_
49,121 11,504 53,462

3,000
42,827 42,827

10,3291 0,3291 55020
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MARINETTE COUNTY, VIIISCONSIN

Schedule of Expend¡turæ of Federal Amrds (Continued)
For the Year Ended Deæmber 31, 2018

CFDA
Number

93.596
93.596

Pass-Through
Aoencv

WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

Brown County
Brom County

Pass-Through
Entity

341 3
3561
3681

831
852

7332

3/.11
3413
3561
368'1

(1,406)
(34,800)

(82,680)
't,251
(116)

(81,5.15)

(19,932)

(3s1)
(1,1 53)

92,754
'1,446

34,800

277,517
(6,048)

396

21,689

254,559
(1,e34)

181

ldentify¡ng
Nlrmbêr

Revenuesffi
Defered Cesh (Defered)
Revenue Received Revenue Total Subrec¡p¡ent

1l' 118 (Retunded) 12131118 Expend¡tures PavmentGrentor Aoencv/Fedeml Prooram T¡tle

TANF Cluster
Temporery Ass¡stance for Needy Famil¡es
Temporary Ass¡stance for Needy Fem¡l¡es

Temporary Assistance for Nædy Families

Temporery Ass¡stance for Needy Fam¡l¡es
Total Temporery Assistance for Needy Families

Child Support Enlorcement (Title lV-D) All Other Expend¡tures 66% Federal
Ch¡ld Support Enforcement (Title lV-D) Fæs 66% Federal
Child Support Enforcement (Title lV-D) Oualify¡ng Non lV-D Activities Federal
Child Support Enforcement (Title lV-D) Perfomanæ Based lnæntives

Total Child Support Enforæment (Title lV-D)

Low lncome Home Energy Ass¡stanæ

Ch¡ld Câre

CCDF Cluster
Ch¡ld Care Mandatory end Match¡ng Funds ofthe Child Cere end Development Fund

Child Cere Mandatory and Metch¡ng Funds ofthe Ch¡ld Care and Development Fund

Totel CCDF Cluster

CS Med¡ælSupport

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Ch¡ld Welfarè Seruiæs Program
Stephen¡e Tubbs Jones Child welfare Services Program
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Ch¡ld WelfeÉ Servicæ Progrem

Total Stephan¡e Tubbs Jonæ Child Wetfare Seryiæs Program

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES ICONTINUED)
Foster Care (Titie lV-E)
Foster Care (T¡Ue lV-E)
Foster Cere (T¡tle lV-E)
Foster Câre (T¡tle lV-Ê)

Total Foster Care (Title lV-E)

Sociel Services Block Grent

Preventive Health and Health Seru¡ces Block Grânt

Ch¡ldren's Healtir lnsurence Program
Ch¡ldren's Health lnsuranæ Prog€m
Totâl Children's Health lnsurance Program

93.558
93.558
93.558
93.558

WI DHS
WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

561
852

3377
3380

93.563
93.563
93.563
93.563

7477
7442
7506
7616

93.568

93.575

WI DOA

WI DCF

AD1599971.38 & AD'r599972.38

104,149
376,0'14

(317)

85,669

42,254

317
(1,M71 1,407 __--:_
t1 a2Á\ 1 7)l

(4,875) 4,875
(41,081) 123,835

82,754

82,79

,149,396

(6,731)
461

22,9U

153

8,248
266,668

42,518
317,587

1 54,549

12,875

WI DCF
WI DCF

93.597

93.645
93.645
93.&5

WI DCF

WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

93.658
93.658
93.658
93.6s8

93.667

93.758

93.767

WI DHS

WI DHS

561

159220

4,563
24,914

1,295

428 4,600
23,76'l

1,894 3,788
(1,144\ 31,371 428 32,'t49 _-______________:

WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF
WI DCF

(701) 8,182 767
(12,943) 279,611

?1 2qQ __L(13,644) 309,052 767

15/',49

7,492

186

5,315

(186)

68

277
2U (15,534) 45,046 9,711 39,223

(15,720\ 45,232 9,711 39,223
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WSCONS¡N
Schedule of Expend¡tures of Federel Awerds (Continued)

For the Yeâr Ended December 31, 2018

Pass-Through
Entity

ldentirying
Number

Revenues
(Accrued) Accrued
Deferred Cash (Defered)
Revenue Reæ¡ved Revenue Total Subrec¡p¡ent

1l'll'18 (Retunded) 1213'1118 Expend¡tures PavmentGrantor Aoencv/Federal Proqram Title

Medi€id Cluster
Med¡cal Assistenæ Program
Medical Ass¡stance Progrem
Med¡€l Ass¡stanæ Program
Med¡€l Ass¡stânæ Program
Medical Ass¡stanæ Program
Mediæl Ass¡stanæ Progrem
Medi€l Assistenæ ProgEm - WIMCR
Medi€¡ Ass¡stanæ Progrem
Medi€l Assistenæ Program
Medi€l Assistanæ Program
Med¡æl Assistanæ Program
Medical Assistance Pþgram - CLTS TPA
Med¡Gl Assistance PrcgEm
Totel Med¡æid Cluster

Block Grents for Community Mental Health Seruics
Block Grants for Commun¡ty Mentel Health Servics

Total Block G€nts for Communíty Mental Health Seß¡cæ

Block Grants for Prevent¡on and Treetment of Substence Abuse

Cons Contracts

Metemal and Child Heelth Sery¡æs Block Grent to the Stâts

Totel U.S. Department of Heelth and Humen Serv¡cæ

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SÊCURITY
Hærdous Mitigation Grent
Emergency Menagement Perfomence Grants

Tolal U.S. Department of Homeland Secur¡ty

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

The notes to the schedule of ilpenditur6 of federal ilards aE an integEl pârt of this schedule.

CFDA
Number

93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93,778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.778
93.Ttg

Pæs-Through

WI DHS
wt oHs
WI DHS
WI DHS
WI DHS
WI DHS
WI DHS

Brom County
Brom County
BlW County
Brom County

WI DHS
WI DHS

878
881

1 59320
s60081
560087
560091

N/A
62

277
2U
298
N/A
N/A

('12,268)
(1,795)

(24,752)
(39,,186)

(9,33e)

(733)
('1,u2)

(159,776)

12,268
't,795
oø

63,576
'tu,796

16,142
262,æ9

4,595
1,842

451,700
37,339

333,629

15,766
2,'t't2

11,272
31,369

1,287

96,055
27,573

15,766
2,1'12

994
50,096

'126,679

6,803
262,569

5,149

387,979
64,912

333,629

93.958
93.958

WI DHS
WI DHS

8,502 8,502
(249,991) 1,32'1,245 193,936 1,265,190

(1,327',) 8,680 1,û2 8,855515
569 (8,006) 22,460 4,278 18,732

(9,333) 31,140 5,780 27,æ7 __:_

7,688 7,688

c8363 (25,2011 50,452 25,087 50,338

(25,2011 û,452 32,775 58,026 _=:_

$ (670,829) $ 3,453,026 $ 735,425 $ 3,540,928 $

93.959

93.994

93.994

WI DHS

WI DHS

WI DHS

570

320

1 59320

97.017
97.O42

WI DMA
WI DMA

91



]
{TARINEITE COUNTY, WSCONSIN

Schedule of Statê Financial Ass¡stance
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Revenues

Grantor Aoencv/Stâte Prooram Title

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. TRAOE AND CONSUMER PROTECTION

County Staff and Support
Land & Water Ræource Managêment Plan lmplementaüon
Land & Water Resource Management Plan lmplementation
Land & Water Resource Management Plân lmplementation
Land & Water Resource Management Plan lmplementation
Land & water Resource Management Plan lmplementation
Land & Water Resource Mânagement Plan lmplementation
Total Department ofAgr¡culture, Trade and Consumer Protection

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
Boating Enforcement
ATV Enforcement
Snomob¡le Enforcement
Wildlife Damage Abatement and C¡a¡ms

w¡ldlife Hab¡tat

County Forest Admin¡strator Granß

Recreational A¡ds - Snomobile Tra¡l and Area Aid
RæreationalAids - Snomob¡le Tra¡l and Area Aid
Recreational A¡ds - Snownobile Tra¡l and Area Aid
Ræreational Aids - Snomobile Tra¡l and Area Aid

Total Recreational Aids - Snomobi¡e Trail and Area Aid

DEPARTMENT OF MTURAL RESOURCES (CONTINUED)

Program
Program
Program
Program

A¡l-Tera¡n Veh¡clê (ATV) Program
All-Terain Vehicle (ATV) Program
All-Terain Veh¡cle (ATV) Program

Total All-Terain Vehicle (ATV) Program

NonpointSource Pollution
NonpointSource Pollution
Lake Management Plann¡ng - Large Scale Granb
lnvasive Aquatic Spec¡es
lnvas¡ve Aquat¡c Spec¡es

Total Department of Natural Resources

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Elderly end Hand¡æpped Transportation Aids

9214-17-3840
LWP.28
LWP-29
LWP-30
NM¡7.I
NM¡7-2
NM-17-3

370.550
370.55'l
370.552
370.553
370.564

NR50.13
NR50.125
NR50.12

TRC38000AY16
37000-FwHtG

Total Subrec¡p¡ent
1/1/18 (Retunded) '1 1118 Exoend¡tures Pavments

$$'t41,814$-$í41,814
(13,939) 13,939
(48,181) 48,'18'l
(4,687) 4,687
(1,915) 1,91s
(1,652) 1,652

(38,833) 383.307 17,002 361,476
(109,207) 595,495 17,OO2 503,290

t.D.
Strate

Numbêr

115.150
1 15.400
1 15.400
1 1s.400
I 15.400
1 15.400
I 15.400

370.572

395.'r01

Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rêct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

Direct Program
O¡rect Program
D¡rect Progrâm
D¡rect Program
O¡rect Program

D¡rect Program

Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program

Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program

Þhect Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Pmgram
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

D¡rect Progrãm

State
bentirying
Number

[JnknoM

(Accrued)
Defered
Revenue

(85,1 9r )

(13,762\
(8,200)
s9,538

(5,122\
37,'163
'11,710

't,o41

M,792

(150,000)

Câsh
Rece¡ved

1 t,395
't4,062
12,676
8s,191
10,778

51,381

13,762
8,200

74,943

7,467
38,451

2,641
264

72,487
11,710

1,051
134,071

33,651
150,000

Accrued
(Defered)
Revenue

8,037
(8,979)
(r,0s1)
(1,993)

1 1,395
14,062
12,676

10,778

51,381

134,481

2,345
75,614
14,351

1,305
80,s24
2,73'l

176,870

370.s74 &370.575
370.574 &370.577
370.574 &370.577
370.574 &370.577

s4707
s4904
s-5007
s5207 -________-_-____ 74,145 (44,885) 29,260

37,576 r71,0s0 (44,885) 163,741

All-Tera¡n Vehicle
All-Tera¡n Veh¡cle
All-Terrain Veh¡cle
All-Tera¡n Veh¡cle

370.576 &370.577
370.576 & 370.577
370.576 & 370.577
370.576 & 370.577
370.576 & 370.577
370.576 & 370.577
370.576 & 370.577

(ATV)
(ATV)
(ATV)
(ATV)

ATV-3503
Ary-3620 (Summer)
ATV-3667 (W¡nter)

ATV-3686T (Troutes)
ATV-3817
Ary-3857

ATV-38767

[Jnknow

370.662
370.662
370.663
370.678
370.678

TRC-TRC-38000-AY
TRC-GB1 3-38000-1 5

LPL-t562-15
AtRR205l6
AtRR22918

33,6s1

(1,049)
(1,66e)

11,U'l
2,284

10,292
615
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WSCONSIN
Schedule of State F¡nancial Assistance (Cont¡nued)

For the Year Ended Deæmber 31, 2018

Stâte

Number
t.D.

State
bentirying
Number

Revenuesffi
Deferred Cash (Deferêd)
Revenue Rece¡ved Revenue Total Subrec¡pient
1l'll'18 (Retunded) '12ß'1118 Expend¡tures PavmenßGrantor Aoencv/State Prooram Title Pass-throuqh Aqency

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH SERVICES
Fraud Prevent¡on lnvestigation, State Share
IMAA State Share ACA
IMAA Federal Share ACA
IMAA State Share
IMAA Federal Share
Adult Protective Seru¡ces
Ch¡ldren's COP
Enhanced lM Fund¡ng
Coord¡nated Seruices - County
Community mental Health
Non-Res¡dent - 997
Birth To Three lnitiat¡ve

Bas¡c County Allocâtion
IDP Emergency Funds
State/County Match
CLTS Waiver GPR
CLTS Grandfather GPR
CLTS Other - County Administrat¡ve Costs
CLTS Autism - County Adm¡nistrative Cosß
Fluoride Mouth r¡nse

WIC Fârmers Market
B¡rth Defects/cYSHCN Poect
B¡rth Defects/CYSHCN Prciect
Cons Contracts CHHD LD
Communi€ble D¡sease Control and Prevent¡on
Cons Contracts PHHS
TPCP-NP.WINS
TPCP.NPINTRV
Ag¡ng D¡sabil¡ty Resouræ Cenler
ADRC Oementia
Elder Abuse

435.060
435.276
435.277
435.283
435.284
435.312
435.377
435.468
435.515
435.516
43s.s31
435.550
435.561
435.567
435.681
435.87'l
435.874
435.877
435.880

435.1 s1 735
435.154720
435.'154790
435.154791
435.157720
435.1558

435.159220
435.181004
435.181010
435.560'100
435.560158
435-560490

437.965
437.975
437.980
437.3377
437.338
437.339
437.3410
437.U'11
437.34't3
437.U't4
437.3561
437.3681
437.7332
437.7502
437.7606

Brom County
Brom County
Brom County
Brom County
Brow County
Direct Program
Dirêct Program
D¡rec't Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Progrâm
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
O¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡recl Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program

Onê¡da County Health Department
One¡da County Health Department

D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

GWAAR

60
278
277
283
284
312
377
468
515
s16
531
550
561
567
681

Unknow
Unknom

877
880

151735
154720
154790
15/.791
157720
155E00
159220
't81004

1 81 010
560100
560158
s60490

965
975
980
3377
3380

33904
3410
34'11
3413
3414
3561
3681
7332
7502
7606

(1,470\
(3,474\

(24\

(3,373)
(18,702)
36,135

(10,347)

(6,023)

(7s,561)

(12,268\
,79s)
,3021
(462\
(8e7)

(1,603)

(78,'107ì-

(3,459)
(e0)

(1,048)

(43,E49)

(13,233)

(1,7s2t

(16,678)

(31,594)

9,1 94
3,474

24
195,994

3,373
39,520
(6,787)

125,157
5r,600

240,078
30,185
35,98 1

890,656
75,561

124,043
97,133
26,841
12,268

1,795
2,604
2,540

897
803

7,913
4,382

994
3,101
2,200

298,914

2,574

'l.5,704
7,803

I 31,109
8,426

52,740

o,oJ r

1,948

1,500

70,130
39,321

'1,484

1,036
29,997

3,800
6,714
2,328
9,740

47,991
5,312

17,262

10,298

195,994

36,522
37,151

256,266
49,679

240,078
76,902
35,98r

890,656

248,086
97,133
26,841

6,83't
I,948
1,302
2,078

2,303
6,310
4,382

994
3,1 01

2,200
290,937

39,321

13,708
309

1 1,854
197,097

14,513
10,842
7,188
9,740

515,888
6p62

¿t ¿,oJo
43,470

68.241

3'1,274

(1

(1

(9,389) 31,700 1,771 24,082

(188,662) 2,312,138 339,857 2,587,376
Total Department of Health Seru¡ces

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES
Food Stamp Agency lncentives
AFDC Agency lncentives
Med¡ca¡d Agency lncent¡ves
Cw Knsh¡p Care Program - Bênefits
CW K¡nsh¡p Care Program - Assessment
Grants for Foster Parenß
Commun¡ty lnteruention Program
Youth Aids AODA
Youth A¡ds
JJ Commun¡ty Superuis¡on Seru¡ces
Bas¡c County Allocation
CW Children and Families Allocation
Ch¡ld Support Mob¡l¡ty Support L¡ability lncentive
Child Support State GPR/PR Funding A¡location
Ch¡ld Support Med¡cal Support GPR Eamed
Total Department of Ch¡ldren and Families

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Mctim and W¡tns Assistance Program - A Program Cluster

Treatrnent Altemat¡ve and D¡vers¡on Program
DNA Sample Program
fotal Department of Justice

D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
Direcl Program
Direcl Program
Direct Program
Direct Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

(1,s66)
(9,784)

15,683
361

11,866
167,100

10,713
4,128
6,426
9,784

511,746
1,650

285,869
21,735

1,752
68,241

30,690

31,594

455.503, 455.532,
& 455.539

455.217
455.221

D¡rect Program

D¡rect Program
D¡rect Program

Unknow
2017-TD42¡ 1969 & 2016-TD-02-1 1603

UnknoM
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MARINETTE COUNTY, WSCONSIN
Schedule of State F¡nanc¡al Assistanæ (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

t.D.
State

Nrmhêr

State
bentirying
Number

Revenuesffi
Defered Gash (Defered)
Revenue Rece¡ved Revenue Total Subtêc¡p¡ent
'll1l'18 (Refunded) 12131118 Expendituræ Pavmenb

(7,909) 15,739 7,829 15,659

________________L 203 8,077 8,280
(7,909) 15,942 15,906 23,939

Grâñtôr Aoêncv/Stãte Prooram Tille

DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY AFFAIRS
Emergency Tra¡ning Grant Program
Computer and Hazmat Êqu¡pment Grant
Total Department of Military Afia¡ß

DEPARTMENÍ OF ADMINISTRAÍ ION

Land lnfomation Board
Training Grant
Stratêg¡c ln¡tiative Grant
Public Benefib - Low lnæme EnergyAss¡stiance Program
Total Department of Adm¡n¡stration

46s.337
465.367

Pass-hrouqh Aqency

Direct Program
D¡rect Program

D¡rect Program
Direc{ Program
Direcl Program
D¡rect ProgEm

323.60 Ss.
323.61 Ss.

50s.1 10
s05.1 18
505.1 66
505.371

Unknom
UnknoM
Unknom

ADr59997't.38 & AD1599972.38

19,768
1,000

75,000

19,768
1,000

75,000
(13,786) 53,044 12,708 51,966
(13,786) 148,812 't2,708 147,734

$ Ls!EJ5EI $ 5.1s2.638 $ 514.413 s 5.214.67't s -
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS

(l ) Victim W1næs is a cluster program tunded by the following State lD Numbeß: 455.503, 455.532, 455.536, 455.537 and 455.539

The notes to the schedule ofstate financial ass¡stance are an ¡ntegral part ofthis schedule.
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Marinette County, Wisconsin
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1: BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards for the County are presented in accordance

with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requiremenfg Cosf

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the Sfafe Slng/e Audit Guidelines

issued by the Wisconsin Department of Administration.

The schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards include all federal and state awards of the County. Because

the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of the County, it is not intended to and does not present

the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the County.

NOTE 2: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenues and expenditures in the schedules are presented in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting

and are generally in agreement with revenues and expenditures reported in the County's 2018 fund financial

statements. Accrued revenue at year-end consists of federal and state program expenditures scheduled for
reimbursement to the County in the succeeding year while unearned revenue represents advances for federal and state

programs that exceed recorded County expenditures. Because of subsequent program adjustments, these amounts
may differ from the prior year's ending balances. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles

contained in the Uniform Guidance and State Single Audit guidelines, wherein certain types of expenditures are not

allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

The County has not elected to charge a de minimis rate of 10o/o of modified total costs.

NOTE 3: OVERSIGHT AGENCIES
The federal and state oversight agencies for the County are as follows:

Federal - U.S. Department of Justice
State - Wisconsin Department of Health Services

NOTE 4: TITLE 19 MEDICAL ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS

The Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards do not include repayments received by the County's

Human Service Department for Title 19 Medical Assistance programs. The payments are considered a contract for

services between the State and the County and therefore are not reported as federal or state awards.

NOTE 5: PASS THROUGH ENTITIES

Federal awards have been passed through the following entities:

GWAAR - Greater Wisconsin Agency on Aging Resources

Wl DCF - Wisconsin Department of Children and Families

Wl DHS - Wisconsin Department of Health Services

Wl DMA - Wisconsin Department of Military Affairs
Wl DNR - Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources
Wl DOA - Wisconsin Department of Administration

Wl DOJ - Wisconsin Department of Justice
Wl DOT - Wisconsin Department of Transportation
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Marinette County, Wisconsin
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 6: STATE DIRECT PAYMENTS
Payments made directly to recipients and vendors by the State of Wisconsin under the FoodShare Wisconsin program

on behalf of the County are not included in the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards.

NOTE 7: STATE OF WISCONSIN COMMUNITY AIDS REPORTING SYSTEM

The Wisconsin Departments of Health Services (DHS) and Children and Families (DCF) utilize the Community Aids
Reporting System (CARS) and the System for Payments and Reports of Contracts (SPARC) for reimbursing the County
for various federal and state program expenditures. The expenditures reported on the Schedules of Expenditures of
Federal and State Awards for various DHS & DCF programs agree with the expenditures reported on the May 2019
CARS for the Human Services and Public Health Departments, and the December 2018 SPARC for Child Support and
Child Care programs.
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Mari nette County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

SECTION I . SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

BAS¡C FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditorsf report issued:

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Þ Materialweakness(es)identified?

Noncompliance material to basic financial statements noted?

FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

lnternal control over major program:

Þ Materialweakness(es)identified?
> Significantdeficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Uniform Guidance?

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with the
Sfafe Sing/e Audit Guidelines?

ldentification of major federal programs:

CFDA Number l,lame of Federal Program

93.778 MedicalAssistance Program

ldentification of major state programs:

State lD Number Name of State Program
IMAA State Share
Enhanced lM Funding
Basic County Allocation
State/County Match
CLTS Other GPR
CLTS Autism Fed
CLTS Other CWA Admin GPR
CLTS Autism CWA Admin GPR
ADRC Dementia
ADRC
Basic County Allocation
State/County Match

Audit threshold used to determine between Type A and Type B programs:
FederalAwards
State Awards

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee

Unmodified

No

None Reported

No

No

None Reported

Unmodified

No

$750,000

$250,000

Yes

No

435.283
435.468
435.561
435.68r
435.871
435.874
435.877
435.880
435.560

435.560100
437.3561
437.3681
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Marinette County, Wisconsin
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

SECTION IV. OTHER ISSUES

1. Does the auditor have substantial doubt as to the auditee's ability to continue

as a going concern?

2. Does the audit report show audit issues (i.e. material non-compliance, non-material
non-compliance, questioned cost, material weakness, significant deficiencies, management
letter comment, excess revenue or excess reserve) related to granUcontracts with funding
agencies that require audits to be in accordance with the Sfafe Srng/e Audit Guidelines:

Department of Agriculture, Trade and Consumer Protection
Department of Natural Resources

Department of Transportation
Department of Corrections
Department of Health Services
Department of Children and Families

Department of Justice
Department of Military Affairs
Department of Administration

3. Was a Management Letter or other document conveying audit comments issued as a result
of this audit?

4. Name and signature of partner

5. Date of report

No

Jon Trautman, CPA

August 8, 2019

No

No

No

No
No

No

No

No

No

Yes
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